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Have a fresh
£ MEERFELIA

CP Lotus is determined to offer customers with the
fresh and pleasurable shopping experience via our great
variety of high-quality merchandise at saving price, the
clean, tidy and comfortable environment, as well as
warm and friendly service. Each year over 300 million
customers enjoy their shopping at CP Lotus.

Currently, CP Lotus received a number of national
awards and recognition which are China Food Health
Seven Star Prize, CCFA Retail Innovation Awards, and
China Best Corporate University Awards for its retail
management course run by CPCU.
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C.P. Lotus Corporation (“CP Lotus”) is one of the leading retail operators in China.
CP Lotus currently owns and operates 58 retail stores under the brand name
“Lotus”, offering fresh and pleasurable shopping experience to all families by
providing a neat and comfortable environment, an assortment of high-quality and
safe merchandise, and a warm and friendly service.

Our ultimate shareholder, Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited (“CP
Group”), is one of the leading conglomerates in Asia with over 90 years of
operating experience in various industries including agro-industrial, retail and
telecom. While the CP Group is headquartered in Thailand, it is one of the oldest
and largest foreign investors in China today.
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Chaoyang Store
Tongzhou Store
Shifoying Store
Chengfu Lu Store
Wangjing Store
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Zhengzhou
Zijingshan Lu Store
Donghuan Lu Store
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Tangyan Lu Store
Changying Lu Store
Changan Lu Store
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Changsha
Xingsha Store
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Guangzhou
Sanyuanli Store
Tianhe Store
Huadu Store
Changxing Store
Huangshixi Lu Store
Foshan

Nanhai Store
Sanshui Store
Huanggqi Store
Shunde Store
Jinshazhou Store
Lecong Store
Jiangmen
Jiangmen Store
Shantou
Changping Store
Chenghai Store
Jinping Store
Jieyang
Dongshan Store
Rongcheng Store
Chaozhou
Chaozhou Store
Chaoan Store
Puning

Puning Store
Meizhou
Huaqgiaocheng Store 3
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Kunshan
Changjiangbei Lu Store
Nantong
Gongnongnan Lu Store
Xuzhou

Jiefangnan Lu Store
Heping Lu Store

Wouxi

Huishan Store
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Hefei
Hean Lu Store
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Yanggaonan Lu Store
Zhoujiazui Lu Store
Chuanchang Lu Store
Wuzhong Lu Store
Shangnan Lu Store
Caoan Lu Store

Super Brand Mall Store
Wenshui Lu Store
Yanggaobei Lu Store
Songjiang Yueyang Store
Chuansha Store
Nanfeng Store
Yanggaozhong Lu Store
Jinshan Weiging Store
Xinzhen Lu Store
Yunchuan Lu Store
Puijiang Store

Xingang Lu Store
Tongchuan Lu Store
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Qingdao
Liaoyangxi Lu Store

55
BISFERIE

556 DB 0 22 30
5 X B A T
55 0 56 56 56 38 % B}
B i 58 56

ok

It S I

BEtEE

%H—Hﬂ/ﬁr
ﬁﬁ?ﬁ
JIB&JE

ﬁ
38R E
)11 88 )5



Contents
H %

01

02 Financial Highlights
MBREE
03 Chairman’s Statement
EFEHRES
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
EEER W R DM

06 Financial Review

Bt 75 [0l 8

13 Business Review
E 3 3E1]-

16 Looking Forward
RE

Corporate Governance

TEER

17 Corporate Governance Report
EEERRES

24 Biographical Details of Directors
EEBEEFHE

Financial Statements

B R =

28 Report of the Directors
EERESE

40 Independent Auditor’s Report
BURBEMHRES

42 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
meERk

43 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other

Comprehensive Income

mEBEERkEMEEKRARE

44 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR OR &

45 Statement of Financial Position
B B AR R R &

46 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERRBBRE

47 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

FEREREHE
48 Notes to the Financial Statements
B S 3R B =
114 Summary of Financial Information
BB ERBE
Supplementary Information
BRER
115 Corporate Information
NAEER

117 Financial Calendar and Shareholder Information
MHEEERBRRER



Financial Hi

RS

. Loss EBITDA
Turnover  Gross Profit for the year BERITEN
= EF FEEE HiHAER
(note)
(PEE)
2013 RMB AR 10,881.6 1,793.3 (96.9) 2451
milion HBExT
2012 RMB AR 10,677.4 1,763.1 (391.6) (20.5)
milion BExT
Change %8 1.9% 1.7% (75.3)% | (1,295.6)%
RMB RMB RMB
million million million
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Turnover Trend
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Gross Profit &
GP Ratio Trend
EHRERZBZ

Note: Comparative figures were reclassified to conform with current year

presentation.
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEREE

2013 was a challenging year, difficult business environment
persisted. China GDP and retail sales recorded a respective
year-on-year growth rate of 7.7% and 13.1%, compared to
7.8% and 14.3% in 2012. Rapid emergence of online retailing
in recent years is also impacting the growth of traditional
commodity retail. On the other hand, the easing of one-child
policy is expected to lift consumption and spur the economy
and certain indicators such as level of urbanization and the
narrowing of the gap between urban and rural residents
are doing better than expected, China’s steady economic
performance will continue to benefit businesses.

The Group recorded revenue of RMB10,881.6 million and a
loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
RMB96.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012:
RMB391.5 million), EBITDA was RMB245.1 million. Same
store sales recorded a negative growth of 1.3%.

While we continued to work hard to improve the performance of
the existing portfolio, the Group continued its cautious investment
approach in 2013. We opened five new stores, three of which
are in Guangdong province, one in Jiangsu province and one
in Beijing. | am pleased to report that the results of some of the
new stores have been very encouraging since opening. Some of
these new stores are opened in tier 3 and tier 4 cities and with
ongoing urbanization and rising income, consumption is growing
fast in lower tier cities which will be the key focus for the Group’s
development in the next few years as competition gets tougher in
tier 1 and tier 2 cities. We will also continue the renovation of the
old stores to provide our customers with a more comfortable and
refreshed shopping environment.

On 22 October 2013, Mr. Li Wen Hai was re-designated as
Senior Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and | have
great confidence in the abilities of Mr. Li and his team to take
forward the business. The new management team has since put
in place various strategies to steer the Company onto the right
track, focusing on operational excellence, disciplined expenses
management, adopting flexible and effective merchandise
and marketing strategy by utilizing the information gathered
from the new CRM system and emphasis on staff support and
enhancing the relationship and communication with vendors and

—E-ZHFRBERERNS > TmkE o =
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Chairman’s Statement

TRBESE

governments. We completed the testing of the new CRM system
in 2013 and the new system will be rolled out to nationwide
this year. The new system will enable our members to enjoy the
same member benefits in every store, thereby strengthening
customer loyalty and increasing shopping frequency. In 2014,
we will continue to work very closely with our suppliers, the
“560% off thanksgiving day” activities has proven to be a success
and suppliers were very supportive as these activities had not
only boosted sales but provide a great platform for suppliers to
introduce new products.

Prospect

Business environment remains challenging in the coming year
but we remain confident in the long term prospect of China’s
economy, the growth of which is becoming more and more
domestic consumption driven. We also believe our business model
is sustainable over the long term. The Company will continue to
assess our business and strategic direction and to seek ways
to enhance value for our shareholders. With the new initiatives
designed to deliver greater efficiencies, cost savings and a more
cohesive work force, | believe we will see significant improvement
in 2014.

Appreciation

| would like to take this opportunity, on behalf of the Board, to
extend our appreciation and gratitude to our shareholders, banks,
vendors and landlords for their continuing trust and support, and
to our management and staff for their dedicated hard work and
commitment throughout the past year. Lastly, | would also like to
thank my fellow Board members for their continued guidance and
support.

Soopakij Chearavanont
Chairman

24 February 2014
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

2013 continued to be a challenging year for the Group. Like all
other retailers in the industry, the Group continued to be affected by
macro-economic circumstances, the slowing down of the economy,
both in terms of GDP growth and retail sales growth, the intensified
competition and the rapid emergence of online retailing which
changes the shopping behaviours of many customers which in turn
partly led to a drop in customer visits. However, there was also
some positives, new stores opened in 2013 have been delivering

EEENWR D

CE-CZHFEBERTEEARBMEZFE-
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encouraging results since opening and we saw operating expenses
improved from 22.7% of sales in 2012 to 20.9% of sales in 2013.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded net loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 (the “Year”) of
RMB96.8 million (2012: RMB391.5 million).

R INHEZ_ZE—=F(hIEEEE220.9% °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEBRmR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE—ZF—=F1-HA=1—HILFE

2013 2012 Change Change
—E-=% —B-CF 25 28
RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEETR AR¥EER AREBETR %
Turnover L 10,881.6 10,677.4 204.2 1.9
Gross profit E| 1,793.3 1,763.1 30.2 1.7
Other revenue and HElaREm
other net income/(loss) WA/ (BE) 38 536.5 428.0 108.5 25.4
Distribution and BERER
store operating costs EERAK (1,932.9) (1,999.4) 66.5 (3.9
Adminstrative expenses THER (335.9) (422.9) 87.0 (20.6)
Finance costs BERK (82.1) (93.3) 11.2 (12.0)
Income tax FrEH (75.8) (67.1) 8.7) 13.0
Loss for the year FEHB (96.9) (391.6) 294.7 (75.3)
Loss for the year attributable to: UTATEEEERS
Equity shareholders of the Company KRRRE (96.8) (391.5) 294.7 (75.3)
Non-controlling interests FERES 0.1 0.9 - -
(96.9) (391.6) 294.7 (75.3)

Turnover increased by RMB204.2 million or 1.9% to RMB10,881.6
million. The increase was due to revenue generated by the five new
stores opened in 2013 of which one in Xuzhou, Jiangsu province,
three in various cities in the Guangdong province and one in
Beijing. Same store sales fell 1.3% due to general slowdown of the
Chinese economy and the rapid emergence of online retailing led
to change in spending habits resulting in fewer buying frequency
and sales was further affected by government’s anti-waste policy.
The increase in ticket was unable to compensate for the drop in
customer counts.

& 2 EE AN A R #5204,200,000TH1.9% E A
[ #£10,881,600,000C - BT HRE =&
—ZFHREFRFEEEZ2WSE  HP -
AMNTIEHBRMN S RURERBETFHT R —
KRR o FL/EMEE T HR1.3%ERPEE
BRENENRLISEZEERSEELEER
BMEBHBBYWARTE B REBREE
— S EHEE  c REIEMIAREEIKE TR 2B
BEAR e
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

EEENmR DN

Gross profit margin was 16.5% of sales (2012: 16.5%). Gross
margin is comprised of front and back margin. Front margin is
sales minus direct cost of sales; back margin represents income
from suppliers such as discounts and allowances. Front margin
dropped from 8.3% to 8.2%, primarily a combined result of heavier
mark-down and more promotion activities to reduce over-stocked
inventory, to boost sales and lure more customers to counter the
effect from online retailing and general slowdown of the economy.
Back margin increased from 8.2% to 8.3% due to improved
relationship with our suppliers and enhanced bargaining power.

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

ERMEBNHEHEHZ2165% (ZF—ZF
16.5%) - ERZRMAAIEFBEZ & F BEHRA
BB AR HIEHEENEEEHERSN; %,
R EERBHERT WA - T REE, -
AR BEHASI%TEES2%  TEAHNED
EEzcFEMABEERELEEZRETEU
ERHERRSIESEEUANGR LTERE
BREERE2SE - AEMBERKESEERN
BEERED  BARNBEHS2% EAE8.3% °

EX Tk
20%
16.5% 16.5%
15%
8.3% 8.2%
10%
5% 8.2% - 8.3%
0%
2013 2012

Other revenue and other net income/(loss) was RMB536.5 million
(2012: RMB428.0 million), comprised mainly lease income which
is income received from leasing of store space. Lease income
increased by RMB35.7 million to RMB405.1 million, or 3.7% of
sales (2012: 3.5%), as a result of the opening of five new stores.
An exchange gain of RMB35.7 million (2012: RMB5.5 million) was
recorded against our US dollar (“USD”) borrowings as a result of
continuing appreciation of the RMB.

Distribution and store operating costs was RMB1,932.9 million,
approximately 17.8% of sales (2012: 18.7%). It comprised mainly
stores rental, personnel expenses, utilities and depreciation and
amortisation charges for a total of RMB1,602.9 million and 5.5%,
5.8%, 2.0% and 1.5% of sales respectively. Personnel expenses
decreased by approximately RMB44.5 million to RMB632.5 million
despite the opening of five new stores and the annual increase
in statutory minimum wages as we started to enjoy the benefit
of a redefined store operating model which see the number of
staffing layers down and productivity enhanced. Depreciation and
amortisation decreased by RMB27.1 million primarily a result of the
change in accounting estimate of fixed assets from the beginning of
2013.

Administrative expenses were RMB335.9 million, or 3.1% of sales
compared to RMB422.9 million, or 4.0% of sales in 2012. It mainly
included personnel expenses of RMB284.3 million, depreciation and
amortisation charges of RMB19.3 million, rental of RMB20.8 million
and professional fee of RMB10.3 million.

Annual Report 2013 %3k
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Financial costs were RMB82.1 million, or 0.8% of sales, a decrease
of RMB11.2 million from the corresponding year in 2012.

Income tax was RMB75.8 million (2012: RMB67.1 million) including
a reversal of deferred tax assets due to expiration/utilisation of tax
loss carried forward of certain PRC subsidiaries of RMB52.9 million.

Net loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
was RMB96.8 million (2012: RMB391.5 million), the improvement
was due to disciplined expense management and the increase from
other income.

Capital expenditure was RMB213.9 million for the Year under
review, mainly for the opening of new stores and renovation of
existing stores. The Group financed its capital expenditure through
a combination of cash generated from its operating activities and
banking facilities.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE B IR | R

As at 31 December 2013
R=F-=#+=A=+—H

EEENWR D

BB X A AR¥%82,100,000T & =8 &
B208% HE-_Z-—_FRHIARYE
11,200,0007T °

FriE® 5 AR %75,800,000T (ZE—=F :
AR #67,100,0007T) BiEE & & TR E KB
AE 2R FERANATEECERELR
HEE2HIEEE AKR®52,900,0007T °

AR ERREEEEFES ARY96,800,000
T(ZE—=F : AR%391,500,0007T) ' &
ETTHRBEILEEEREMU AL -

EXABMIREEEERAARKR213,900,000
T FEERRFERLREERET - K&
EREEERRBITHREMEECRSHEGE
HFEERFAL -

2013 2012 Change Change
—E-=& —E--F X 2H
RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEER ARBEER ARBEER %
Fixed assets BEEE 1,870.7 1,836.8 33.9 1.8
Goodwill RS 3,154.3 3,154.3 = -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEEH 266.2 416.0 (149.8) (36.0)
Pledged bank deposits BEARTER 104.5 214.8 (110.3) (51.4)
Inventories 7E 1,105.6 908.6 197.0 21.7
Trade and other receivables EERHMERKE 852.5 847.9 4.6 0.5
Other assets HtEE 277.6 338.9 (61.3) (18.1)
Total Assets HEE 7,631.4 7,7117.3 (85.9) (1.1)
Bank and other loans RITREMER 1,211.0 1,410.3 (199.3) (14.1)
Trade payables and EEREMNNE
other liabilities KEMERE 4,350.9 4,234.3 116.6 2.8
Total liabilities maf 5,561.9 5,644.6 (82.7) (1.5)
Net Assets EEFHE 2,069.5 2,072.7 (3.2) (0.2)
Share capital & A< 396.1 386.4 9.7 2.5
Reserves i 1,671.7 1,684.5 (12.8) (0.8)
Non-controlling interests FERER 1.7 1.8 (0.1) (5.6)
Total Equity EEAE 2,069.5 2,072.7 (3.2) (0.2)
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

EEENmR DN

Fixed assets changes mainly represent additions of fixed assets of
RMB213.9 million for the opening of the five new stores and store
renovation; depreciation and amortisation for the Year of RMB170.9
million and fixed assets with carrying amount of RMB8.9 million was
disposed of during the Year under review.

Goodwill of RMB3,154.3 million represents the goodwill amount of
RMB2,719.8 million arising from the Company’s acquisition of the
21 Lotus stores owned by Shanghai Lotus Supermarket Chain Store
Co., Ltd. in prior years and additional interest of Qingdao Lotus
Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. and Shantou Lotus Supermarket
Chain Store Co., Ltd. in October 2008 and RMB434.5 million arising
from the acquisition of four hypermarkets in Wuxi, Xuzhou, Hefei
and Changsha from Whole Sino Limited (“WSL”) on 1 January
2012. Impairment test on the goodwill value is carried out annually
based on a number of market assumptions including discount rates,
forecast growth rates and expected changes to direct prices and
selling costs and no impairment of goodwill was recorded for 2013.

Cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB266.2 million as of
year end (2012: RMB416.0 million).

Pledged bank deposits of RMB104.5 million as at 31 December
2013 (2012: RMB214.8 million), a decrease of RMB110.3 million due
to reduction in the issuance of bank accepted bills for payments to
suppliers during the Year.

Inventories balance was RMB1,105.6 million as at 31 December
2013, an increase of RMB197.0 million with an average inventory
turnover days of 40 days (2012: 43 days). The increase in inventory
at the end of 2013 was due to the Chinese New Year calendar shift
with Chinese New Year fell on January in 2014 and on February in
2013 and the five new stores opened in 2013.

Trade and other receivables increased by RMB4.6 million to
RMB852.5 million (2012: RMB847.9 million). Included in the
balance was RMB269.0 million (2012: RMB223.8 million) of trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits placed with landlords.
All the trade and other receivables, apart from rental deposits of
RMBG66.7 million, are expected to be recovered within one year
and thus no provision was made. Also included in the balance was
RMB583.4 million (2012: RMB624.2 million) of receivables from
related companies, a reduction of RMB40.8 million. Receivables
from related companies were primarily merchandise supplied by
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment
Company Limited (“CPH”) and its related entities under various
supply agreements. Discount and allowances received by the Group
from suppliers in respect of the merchandise sold to CPH and its
related entities is retained by the Group. We will continue to work
closely with CPH to expedite collection.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Other assets of RMB277.6 million mainly comprised of intangible
assets of RMB206.0 million, deferred tax assets of RMB22.9 million
and prepaid lease payments for premises of RMB41.6 million.
Intangible assets relates to operating lease agreements acquired in
the acquisition of subsidiaries in 2008 and in 2012. Intangible assets
are amortised using the straight-line method over the remaining
lease terms which vary from 10 to 30 years. Deferred tax assets
reduced by RMB42.2 million as a result of expiration/utilisation of
tax loss carried forward of certain PRC subsidiaries.

Bank and other loans of RMB1,211.0 million as at 31 December
2013, a reduction of RMB199.3 million mainly due to repayment of
bank loans equivalent to RMB50.3 million and RMB110.0 million
other loans was settled or assigned to other related entities during
2013.

LOAN PORTFOLIO
B

As at 31 December 2013
R=E-=F+=H=+-A
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199,300,000t ' FEHRAE-ZE—=F R >
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Loans from
Bank loans third parties Total
B=HEG
RITEXN ZE® W
RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEER ARBEETR ARBEBEETR
Within one year —FR 70.9 40.8 111.7
Over one year —F% 1,099.3 - 1,099.3
Total s 1,170.2 40.8 1,211.0

RMB1,170.2 million were bank loans from a Thai syndicate led by
The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited with a term of
seven years.

Trade payables and other liabilities as at 31 December 2013
was RMB4,350.9 million (2012: RMB4,234.3 million) of which
RMB3,914.3 million (2012: RMB3,899.4 million) was trade and other
payables due to third parties while the remaining was payables due
to related parties.

Reserves balance was RMB1,671.7 million as at 31 December
2013 (2012: RMB1,684.5 million). It comprises share premium
of RMB1,836.9 million, other reserves of RMB280.6 million and
accumulated losses of RMB445.8 million. The increase in share
premium primarily from the issuance of ordinary shares as a result
of exercise of share options granted on 10 November 2003.

Capital structure
The Group finances its own working capital requirement through a

combination of funds generated from operations, bank and other
borrowings.

AR #%¥1,170,200,000T & LAThe Siam
Commercial Bank Public Company Limited
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Liquidity and finance resources

During the Year, the Group’s sources of funds were generated
primarily from operating activities and banking facilities. The
decrease in net cash and cash equivalents was mainly due to
investing cash outflow of RMB213.9 million for the purchase of fixed
assets for the five new stores opened in 2013 and store renovation.
We expect we will continue to have sufficient cash to meet our
business needs.

RBESRUMBER

REER AEBCESRRETEREEEE
BRBITHE BeRRESEHFERLEE
HR - E-—=FHRAXFEREHBHE
HREESEPCHERTCEEREARY
213,900,000t - AEEFEHKEEEERT R
Be . UWENEBRRE -

For the year
ended 31 December

BEt=-A=+—H
HEE
2013 2012
—Eg-= —E-—F
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEEHE
(RMB million) (AR¥EBET) 266.2 416.0
Bank and other loans (RMB million) RITREMER(ARBEER) 1,211.0 1,410.3
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Be (Rd) / RAFHE
after effect of foreign exchange (BEEHIEERES HE)
rate changes (RMB million) (ARBBER) (149.8) 173.6
Current ratio (x) RENLE 2 (£5) 0.55 0.44
Quick ratio (x) HE)LL 2 (£F) 0.29 0.27
Gearing ratio (x) EAREEGFIE (F)
(defined as bank and other (URTREMERR
loans by total equity) LB RERTE) 0.59 0.68

During the Year under review, bank loans bear interest at three-
month London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 3.25% per
annum and other loans bear interest at three-month LIBOR plus
1.5% per annum.

Foreign currency exposure

The directors consider that as the Group’s retail operations are all
based in the PRC, the Group is therefore not exposed to significant
currency risk in its retail operations.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk from bank loans
held by certain PRC subsidiaries, which are denominated in USD.
In respect of the USD bank loans borrowed in Hong Kong, as
HK$ is pegged to USD, the Group does not expect any significant
movements in the USD/HK$ exchange rate; and in respect of the
USD bank loans borrowed by PRC subsidiaries, we expect RMB
will continue to appreciate, albeit at a slower rate, in the coming
years, the Group also does not expect any negative impact of
foreign currency risk in the PRC subsidiaries. Therefore, the Group
has not undertaken any foreign currency hedging activities. The
Group however will monitor closely the USD/RMB exchange rate
movements and will consider hedging the currency risk as and when
necessary.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had issued two guarantees
to an independent third party which expire in 2025 and two
guarantees to a bank which expire in April 2014 and July 2014
respectively in respect of finance lease arrangements entered
into by its subsidiaries. The directors do not consider it probable
that claims will be made against the Company under any of the
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at 31 December
2013 under the guarantees issued was 100% of the future minimum
lease payments under the lease agreements entered into by the
subsidiaries of RMB100.0 million.

Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had a share charge created
in favour of Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Hong Kong
Branch (“BBL”) on 16 December 2011 whereby the Company
agreed to pledge all shares of its subsidiary, Prime Global Retail
Management & Advisory Limited to BBL. An equitable share
mortgage had been created by the Company in favour of BBL on 16
December 2011 whereby the Company agreed to pledge all shares
of its subsidiaries, Chia Tai Trading (Beijing) Company Limited,
Chia Tai Trading (Qingdao) Company Limited, Chia Tai Trading
(Xian) Company Limited, Chia Tai Trading (Zhengzhou) Company
Limited, Chia Tai Distribution Investment Company Limited, Yangtze
Supermarket Investment Co. Limited and Union Growth Investments
Limited (“Union Growth”) to BBL.

As at 31 December 2013, an equitable share mortgage had been
created by Union Growth in favour of BBL on 16 December 2011
whereby Union Growth agreed to pledge all shares of its subsidiary,
Lotus-CPF (PRC) Investment Company Limited (“Lotus-CPF”) and
10,821,033 shares of Chia Tai-Lotus (Guangdong) Investment Co.
Ltd. (“CT-Lotus”) to BBL. An equitable share mortgage had been
created by Lotus-CPF in favour of BBL on 16 December 2011
whereby Lotus-CPF agreed to pledge 97,389,312 shares of its
subsidiary, CT-Lotus to BBL.

The abovementioned share charge and equitable share charges in
favour of BBL were created to secure the Group’s term loan facility
of USD200 million which will expire on 31 December 2018 with
instalment payments scheduled during its term. As at 31 December
20183, the total principal outstanding was USD191.8 million.
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Employees, training and remuneration policy

The Group employed approximately 16,000 employees as at 31
December 2013, of which approximately 1,500 were head office
staff and approximately 14,500 were store employees. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance, experience
and prevailing market rate. Other employee benefits include
insurance and medical cover, subsidised training programs as well
as share option scheme for directors and senior management.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Store network

During the Year under review, the Group opened five new
hypermarkets of which one in Xuzhou, Jiangsu province, three in
various cities in the Guangdong province and one in Beijing. The
five new stores are opened in cities where the Group already has an
established presence, further adding a total building area and sales
area of approximately 79,000 sgm and approximately 37,100 sgm
respectively. The Group closed down the two Lotus Life Stations in
May 2013.

The Group now has 58 retail stores including 56 hypermarkets and
two supermarkets with a total sales floor area of approximately
486,000 sgm.

Optimisation of merchandise

During the Year under review, the Group continued to strengthen
central purchasing function and enhance the negotiation and range
management skills of the buyers by organising professional training
seminars. Our National Commercial Analysis Team provides detailed
analysis of product performance, generating weekly tracking report
for both sales and margin thus enable the team to make better and
more informed decision on merchandise assortment and identify
which suppliers offer the lowest cost products and in turn able to
raise the product margins.

In the fourth quarter, while continuing the centralised purchase
strategy, the Group also reviewed its local purchase function and
decided to enhance its capability, local buyers are encouraged to
introduce the popular products to nationwide and therefore broaden
the overall offerings.

The performance of the Group, like the rest of the industry, had
been unavoidably affected by the government’s anti-waste policy
and the expiration of government’s subsidy on electrical products.
To counter this negative effect, the Group, in cooperation with
major suppliers, had organised a number of large-scale promotion
activities to boost sales and introduce new products. By working
closely with major suppliers, the Group is finalising the merchandise
offer and promotion plan for the year 2014.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The quality and safety of our products remains utmost importance
to Lotus and we received subsidy from government on our
investment in machinery and equipment which is designed to raise
safety and hygiene level. We continued to review and strengthen
our quality control measures through supply chain and vendor
development to ensure product integrity.

Improvement of operation and system efficiency

The Group continued to make use of systems and tools to improve
operating efficiency. Our Holytax vendor platform not only allows us
to process VAT invoice certification online, it also provides invoice
matching function, transaction history, discount and allowance
reduction and inventory level information etc. The platform not only
helps improve relationship with our suppliers but also the overall
efficiency of our finance payment team. We have since combined
all previously used different vendor systems which offer different
capabilities into one single vendor platform which provides end-to-
end services from ordering to payment.

The Group had completed the testing of its new customer loyalty
system and will roll out to all the stores nationwide. The new
store membership system allows the Lotus membership card to
be used nationwide instead of only locally/regionally at present.
The information gathered can allow the marketing team to analyse
spending behaviours and preferences and devise a nationwide
marketing strategy and special tailored membership promotions to
improve sales and enhance customer loyalty.

Distribution centre (“DC”) is an integral part of our retail business.
The Group had completed the replacement of the old DC system,
the technology of which had become obsolete. The new system is
now operational in our Shanghai DC and will be put in place in all
other DCs soonest. The new DC system supports more than just
one DC in the same district.

We continued our commitment to total quality management (“TQM”)
to achieve operational excellence. Currently 52 of our stores and all
DCs are I1ISO 9001 certified. We will continue to work on improving
and implementing our TQM.

Optimisation of supply chain management

During the Year under review, added efforts had been made to
further improve inventory management and the efficiency of our
DCs which saw the reduction in the inventory days on hand. The
continued upgrading and development of the DC system and
infrastructure enable our Shanghai DC to be able to serve our stores
in Jiangsu province and our Beijing DC to deliver goods to stores
in Qingdao and Zhengzhou. With the continued expansion to the
eastern part of the Guangdong province, a new DC will be opened in
Shantou, the second in the Southern region, in mid of 2014 and will
cover the stores in east Guangdong and Hunan provinces.

EEENWR D

EmcEREZEUY MNEERNABHER
EAKBECHSAREAZERFEKFIMRER
EREBRRB2BARHEY - AEBEEERT
RinigmE R WA BMHEERNKA
HEBEHEURRERZZRM -

RAEERAZABUE

AEBEBNARERIENZELEENR K
SEzHolytaxtEE & T E A EREEVAT
ERH TREBETME I RBLH
FMRZRINBRFEKREEER - LFEAT
BEPNEHMER 2 BER  BRESUK LR
B ERYE AEECSHAAEBELA
RETREIZTEHEBTRGE —EHERS
FEAITBEAREHE - EXRE -

FEBCEREFTEZEHERKAARS
BEREAEEHET HEHSERKTE
BELESFR2EER  BARBRIARAK
h, BEER - WEZEHATET S IEBKD
MHBEEREE HYHELETSRKR
BRIESFTESEHEE  UREHERMEHE
BERBE -

By (TEEFL ) DASETEXE 24
A c ARECETEREREBRED LR -
HERMOBE - HAKRCR EBEZEH O
EERSEREREMAHEAME XSO - #k
ZHOLRBRAXEREAEAS R — K ZBEF

L o

AEBHEEAFZFZEARESE ((TQM]) LUE
HEMEE R AEEZ2RIEHERT
Fi sk th 0 B BUAEISO 90015235 o A EE i 44
EHNEREHRTQMZER -

BefEEagEE

REBEFERN AEECEZHUE-—DRE
FEEERBEAFLOZHE SHEEFAEAH
R - BEPOLORSREEZCBEARKRER
B LBERET O X BITESE < 5 R =R
ERLAXREZEERMINZER - BBEER
BRB2HERR  EES -RMBEEF LS
REZB-—NEPHRANLERS  XEBEER
BRA N AR ZIEH -

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&sETEH R



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

EEENmR DN

Major marketing activities to enhance brand awareness and
customer loyalty

We continued to work closely with our suppliers to improve
customer shopping experience through product innovation,
co-brand marketing activity and customer centricity. After a
disappointing Chinese New Year sales in 2013 affected partly by
the government’s anti-waste campaign, we, with the support of
our suppliers, launched the “50% off thanksgiving day” in March,
the usual slow-sales month of the year. The activity proved to be
a success with sales increased by over 50% as well as having
attracted both old and new customers. Our suppliers was pleased
with the result and had since committed to support similar activities
as it not only improved their product sale but also served as a good
platform for them to launch new products. The Group had since
organised similar activities every two to three months and covers all
stores nationwide.

Continued store innovation

The Group continued its efforts to transform our stores into
lifestyle model to provide one-stop shopping convenience, a more
comfortable shopping environment and bring in more varieties to
our customers. During the Year under review, we have completed
the renovation of 5 stores. In 2014, we plan to renovate at least
6 stores and we will take advantage of the scale of renovation to
reduce costs.

Social responsibility

Observing the business mission — “For the Country, For the People
and For the Company”, the Group continued to be actively involved
in community, focusing on helping and developing people. A
number of activities had been organised including the “Pink Spring”
women care charity activity designed to help women in need;
“Lotus Heart: Tree Planting” activity co-organised with the Shanghai
Pudong New Area Fire Brigade which gave the participants the
opportunity to learn about fire safety. To pledge our support for a
greener planet, all Lotus stores partook in the “2013 Earth Hour
Activity”.

People development

Training and development remains one of the Group’s strategic
priorities in attracting, developing and retaining a knowledgeable
and skilled workforce. A number of training seminars was organised
in Shanghai during June to September which was attended by over
300 merchandise buyers on how to enhance negotiation skill and
range management.

Lotus Executive Committee was established in October to manage
the daily operation of the Group as well as forming strategic
directions. The reporting line and work processes of core business
functions were re-adjusted to strengthen competencies and overall
communication. In November, the Group held the “10-Year Service
Employee Forum” to express gratitude to long serving employees
and listen to their opinions and respond to their questions directly.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Training and development will continue to be our key focus in
2014. We will establish section manager training centre to provide
comprehensive knowledge and skill trainings as well as instruction
and guidance for work process and standards to each store
employee. We will continue to improve our evaluation mechanism to
ensure a fair platform for career development.

LOOKING FORWARD

The outlook remains challenging with the slowdown of the growth
of both the GDP and the retail sales, the continued penetration
of the online retailing will also be a concern. However, we remain
confident in the long term development of the Chinese economy as
it continues to move towards domestic consumption driven and we
are also confident that our business model is sustainable.

In 2014, the Group will continue to expand its retail network by
opening a further three to five new stores. Some of the sites
we have secured are in the third and fourth tier cities where the
incomes are rising with ongoing urbanization and competition is less
intense. The performance of the stores in third tier cities like Lecong
and Meizhou has been exceeding expectation since opening. We
will also review the existing portfolio to find ways to enhance the
shareholders’ value. We will continue to improve merchandise
assortment, upgrade and optimise our store schematics, increase
operation efficiency and reduce operating costs to remain
competitive. The Group believes that, with the new management
team in place, the Group will be able to return to profitability in the
near future.
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Corporate Governance Report

TRERKES

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standards
of corporate governance that properly protect and promote the
interests of all shareholders at all times. The Board believes that
good corporate governance practices are the cornerstones for a
successful business, not an exercise in compliance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board regularly reviews the Group’s corporate governance
guidelines and practices. During the year, the Company has applied
the principles and complied with all the relevant code provisions
prescribed in the Corporate Governance Code (“Code Provisions”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

THE BOARD

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for the leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses. The Board decides
on corporate strategies and supervises the financial performance,
management and organisation on behalf of the shareholders.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations, business strategies and
management of the Group’s businesses to certain executive directors
and senior management and certain specific responsibilities to the
Board committees.

Board Composition

As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises of fifteen
members, ten are executive directors (including a Chairman,
a Senior Vice Chairman and four Vice Chairmen) and five are
independent non-executive directors. Detailed biographies of the
directors can be found on pages 24 to 27 of this annual report.

Mr. Li Wen Hai has been re-designated as Senior Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 22 October
2013.

Confirmation has been received from all independent non-executive
directors that they are independent as required by the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)

The roles of Chairman and CEO of the Company are separated
and the positions are held by separate individuals with a view to
maintain an effective segregation of duties between management
of the Board and day-to-day management of the Group’s business.
There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship between the Chairman and CEO.
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Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont is the Chairman of the Company.
He is responsible for overseeing the function of the Board and
formulating overall strategies and policies of the Company and
providing leadership to the Board so that the Board works efficiently
and discharges its responsibilities and that all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

Mr. Jimmy Ardell Schafer resigned as CEO of the Company and Mr.
Li Wen Hai has been re-designated as CEO of the Company with
effect from 22 October 2013. CEO is responsible for managing the
Group’s business and operations.

Board and Committee Attendance

The Board held four regular and one other Board meetings in 2013,
including the performing of corporate governance functions for
establishing the Board diversity policy and reviewing the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of directors, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) and written
employee guidelines, and the compliance with the Code Provisions.

Details of the attendance of each individual director at Board
meetings, committee meetings and general meetings during 2013
are set out below:

TRERBES

HEALERRRAZER - REEERES
SPEERBIFT AR A ERREERR - HE
EEEHAEREMTERBITHRE  BUEMR
FEERABECERTEESSEREE -

RZZE—Z=ZF+A=+=H8 " Jimmy Ardell
Schafert £BER AR ERHUITEZHBBER
THEBEEEAEREARAZEREHNITE &
FEHITEEEEBRAREZEXBREE -

EZERZEEZHER

EEEN - -ZFRTORERR—REM
Exegn BEBETLEERBE  UHE
EEEINLBRRBNAD A 2 EEERK
EREFR BERESHIRFEEXZER &
RAWEEREERAETAZCHRERER 2B
B EHRAMBRTAH (LT ARES
ETRS IS WERESTAD ((REFA ) B2
BEMEESI2ETRY TR BT -

BUESR-_Z-=ZFREFEESEF %
EEEERBRRASZHBTHRIIMT ¢

No. of meetings attended/held

=08 i W
Nomination ~ Remuneration Audit

Board Committee Committee Committee General
Directors meetings meeting meeting meetings meetings
£z Ezg R#zag FHzEE ENZEE REAE
Executive Directors YiTES
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont HEALE 5/5 17 11 112
Mr. Li Wen Hai ZEBEL 45 112
Mr. Narong Chearavanont HAMLE 4/5 0/2
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed RIEE %4 5/5 2/2
Mr. Michael Ross EFELE 5/5 112
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BOEEE 0/5 0/2
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont HnfiE 5/5 112
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont HBCEE 0/5 0/2
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvong% 4 5/5 0 2 12
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul Piyawat Titasattavorakul % 4 5/5 072
Independent Non-Executive BUHTES

Directors

Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnits & 4/5 0 0/ 2/2 12
Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara Songkitti Jaggabatara’t & 5/5 1 2/2 2/2
Mr. ltthaporn Subhawong Itthaporn Subhawong’t 4 5/5 2/2
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech Prasobsook BoondechZt & 5/5 2/2
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo ik 5/5 17 17 212 212
No. of meetings £ 1L 5 1 1 2 2
* attended on voluntary basis * SN
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Messrs. Soopakij Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont and
Suphachai Chearavanont are brothers. They are the cousins of Mr.
Meth Jiaravanont. Mr. Michael Ross is the brother-in-law of Messrs.
Soopakij Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont and Suphachai
Chearavanont and cousin-in-law of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont. Save as
disclosed above, there are no family relationships among members
of the Board and between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

Continuous Professional Development

The individual training record of each director received for the year
ended 31 December 2013 is summarised below:

WEALE - BARTERBECEED RS
2R WEDNHRELECESR - BERIEL
ETHEALRE - BHAREERFPRICEEZ
BHARHREBERECERKR -BRULIEE
S AthESERECHREFEEEHTE
ZEBEEMBBRER -

FREXRRE

ARFEREBNESEE-_Z—=F1+=A
=St-BLEFEZEIRSE HBENT

Attending seminar(s)
relevant to business

Reading or directors’ duties

Directors Materials and responsibilities
HERERSESEHE
= MEER HRZHHE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont WEALE v
Mr. Li Wen Hai ZHBELE v
Mr. Narong Chearavanont By it v
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed RIEE 4 4
Mr. Michael Ross BRIBELE v
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BNERE v
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont WREEE v
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont MR- EE v/
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvong’t 4 v/
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul Piyawat Titasattavorakul 4t 4 v
Independent Non-Executive BYFHTES
Directors

Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnit% £ v/
Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara Songkitti Jaggabatara’t 4 v/
Mr. ltthaporn Subhawong Itthaporn Subhawong’t 4 v/
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech Prasobsook Boondech %t & 4
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo B L E v

Securities Transactions by Directors/Officers

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all directors, they confirmed that they have fully complied
with the required standards as set out in the Model Code. Officers/
employees deemed to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive or confidential information in relation to the Company or
its shares are required to prohibit from dealing in securities of the
Company in accordance with written guidelines.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal

During the year, there was no resignation and appointment of
directors.

All newly appointed directors were briefed by the Company’s
lawyers about their duties and obligations as a director of a listed
company in Hong Kong.

The executive directors are not appointed for a specific term. The
independent non-executive directors are appointed for a term of one
year, which is renewable. All the directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election by shareholders at general meetings of
the Company, in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company (the “Articles”).

Directors who are appointed by the Board must retire at the next
following general meeting/annual general meeting after their
appointments, but they are eligible for re-election at that general
meeting, and such election is separate from the normal retirement
of directors by rotation. According to the Articles, at least one-third
of the directors who have served the longest on the Board from last
re-election are required to retire by rotation at each annual general
meeting. The retiring directors are eligible for re-election at the
same annual general meeting.

BOARD AND OTHER COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
directors of the Company, Messrs. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman), Viroj
Sangsnit and Songkitti Jaggabatara with the purpose of monitoring
the integrity of the Group’s financial statements and provides
assurances to the Board that these comply with accounting
standards, stock exchange and legal requirements in relation to
financial reporting. The Audit Committee met twice in 2013 to review
work done by internal and external auditors, oversees financial
reporting system and internal control procedures. The Audit
Committee receives updates from Internal Audit and has dialogue
with senior management on their control responsibilities.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Group’s external auditors, Messrs. KPMG is set out as follows:

TRERBES

ZE -EERER

RER  BEESEHEIREME -

FEMRECESEAL R 2 ML KREE
REBLTLRAESEZHE -

HITESUEBEEEH - BUFATES2E
MR- (UEE) - FIEESARBAQTZ
ABERARN (AR BESRERREADFZ
RERE LEREE -

EE=SZRIE83  AEBRIZEENEE
BRRAE BRERBFAE LRE  BIRZR
RAELBREEARZEEIRGFA-—RES
ZWESER - RBEMAE BI=02—ESE
BERERERNESS2ARERE  ANE
ERRBFAESLBESR - REESTARN
B-RRAFAG LEREF-

EEZXET
EREER

ERZEEEHRAQ A NBIHYITES
ERER AN £ &£ (£ FE) ~ Viroj Sangsnitit £ &
Songkitti Jaggabatarafc £ K 0 LB B AR E
EHERECEEEROESSRMEEARED
BrHEBBEREEB2STER  BMRAMRE
FER - ERZEER T =FETMAE
B WERARIPEIMEZEE 2 TERS - &
BUBERERARADEERF - ERZEES
WEABETHAICEFTESREEAER

NEE 2 EREE -

REEFER  AKESH BEIEZE
M-2SRSTMEREMZMSHRINT :

Fee Paid/Payable

e EAEA
2013
—E—=
(RMB’000)
(AR®T )
Audit Services Ei RIS 3,600
Other Services H b R 7% 200
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent
non-executive directors of the Company, Messrs. Cheng Yuk Wo
(Chairman), Viroj Sangsnit and Songkitti Jaggabatara and two
executive directors of the Company, Messrs. Soopakij Chearavanont
and Umroong Sanphasitvong. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for the formulation of the Group’s remuneration policies
and for the approval of remuneration packages for all directors
except that its members do not participate in the determination of
their own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee determines
the remuneration of executive directors and senior management,
including benefits in kind, fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses,
incentive payment, share option, pension right and compensation
payment (including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment etc). The determination of
the Remuneration Committee should be made in consultation with
and taking recommendations from the Chairman of the Board and
other advisers as appropriate and submitted for endorsement by the
Board. The Remuneration Committee met once in 2013 to discharge
its duties. Details of the directors’ emoluments are set out in Note 6
to the financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive director
of the Company, Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (Chairman) and
two independent non-executive directors of the Company,
Messrs. Cheng Yuk Wo and Viroj Sangsnit. The main roles and
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include determining
and reviewing the nomination policy and Board diversity policy,
making recommendations to the structure, size and composition of
the Board at least annually, the appointment and re-appointment
of the directors and identify their suitabilities and to access the
independence of the independent non-executive directors. The
Nomination Committee met once in 2013 to discharge its duties,
including assessing the independency of independent non-executive
directors under the guidelines of the Listing Rules and review the
Board diversity policy and terms of reference.

Summary of Board Diversity Policy

According to the Board diversity policy of the Company, selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to, gender, age, culture and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service in the Company etc. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board. Steady progress was made on achieving those
objectives.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for managing business and operational
risks and maintaining a proper and effective system of internal
control to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets against unauthorised use or disposition. The Board has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Group has
adopted comprehensive procedures with duly assigned levels
of authority in areas of financial, operational controls, and risk
management to ensure that its assets and resources remain secure
at all times.

The role of the Audit Committee is, through dialogue with
management, and the use of risk management and internal audit
functions to review the effectiveness of the internal control systems
and to report to the Board any significant risks and issues.

Risk Management is responsible for analysing possible risks that
may affect the Group’s business operations; find measures to
eliminate, prevent and control risk. The Group has invested in
distribution centres and information technology systems such as
the store management system and the distribution centre system.
Information technology has played a major role in assisting the
Group to achieve higher efficiency in data storage and analysis.
Therefore, an error or problem in the information technology
systems will affect the Group’s ability to manage store operation
on a normal basis and may negatively affect the Group’s operating
performance.

The internal audit department is fully independent of business
operations. It has full and complete access to any of the Group’s
records, physical properties and personnel relevant to a review. The
authority of the department is defined by the Audit Committee and
reports administratively to the CEO and functionally to the Audit
Committee.

The objective of operation audit is to provide an independent
and objective evaluation of the quality and effectiveness of
store operations including internal controls established by the
management. Each store has to go through a monthly detailed
inspection of key operating activities such as cash movement,
goods receiving, claims and payments. Storewide physical counts
are carried out at least once a year. The operation audit department
reports to the CFO.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the Group’s
state of affairs. Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 72 and 73 of the Articles, general meetings can
be convened on the written requisition of any two members of the
Company deposited at the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists.

Any extraordinary general meeting called for the passing of a
special resolution shall be called by notice in writing of not less
than a period which is the longer of twenty-one days and ten clear
business days, and any other extraordinary general meeting shall
be called by notice in writing of not less than a period which is the
longer of fourteen days and ten clear business days. The notice
shall be exclusive of the day on which it is served or deemed to
be served and of the day for which it is given, and shall specify
the place, the day and the hour of meeting and, in case of special
business (as defined in Article 75 of the Articles), particulars of
the resolutions to be considered at the meeting, and shall be
given in manner hereinafter mentioned or in such other manner, if
any, as may be prescribed by the Company in general meeting to
such persons as are, under these Articles, entitled to receive such
notices from the Company provided that a meeting of the Company
notwithstanding that it is called by shorter notice than that specified
in this Article be deemed to have been duly called if it is so agreed
by a majority in number of the members having a right to attend and
vote at the meeting, being a majority together holding not less than
ninety-five per cent in nominal value of the shares giving that right.

Shareholders’ enquiries put to the Board or any proposals
to be put forward at general meetings can be emailed to
contact@cplotuscorp.com or by mail to:

C.P. Lotus Corporation
21/F., Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

Effective communication with shareholders and investors and the
provision of high standards of disclosure and financial transparency
have always been one of the Group’s priorities. A number of formal
communication channels are available to shareholders for the
performance of the Group including the annual and interim report
and the press release and announcements. Annual general meeting
and other general meetings provide a useful opportunity for the
Board to maintain a constructive dialogue with our shareholders.

The Group is committed to maintain continuing open dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts as a means of developing their
understanding of our strategy, operations, management and plans
and raising any issues they may have and provide the Group with
valuable feedbacks and insights.

The Company has its website http://www.cplotuscorp.com which
provides additional channel for shareholders and interested parties
to access the Group’s information.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont, aged 50, has been an Executive
Director and Chairman of the Company since 2000. He was
re-designated as Chief Executive Officer & Executive Vice Chairman
of the Company with effect from 1 May 2008. His title of Executive
Vice Chairman was changed to Vice Chairman with effect from
1 September 2010, from Vice Chairman to Executive Chairman
with effect from 1 January 2012 and from Executive Chairman to
Chairman with effect from 1 April 2012. He was the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company and also became
a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company and
the Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company with
effect from 1 April 2012. He resigned as Chief Executive Officer of
the Company with effect from 1 August 2012 but has remained the
Chairman of the Company.

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont obtained a Bachelor of Science degree
in the College of Business and Public Administration of New York
University, USA and has extensive multinational investment and
management experience in various industries. He is an executive
director and Vice Chairman of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. and a non-
executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China,
Ltd., which are companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont is also
a director of True Corporation Public Company Limited, CP ALL
Public Company Limited and Siam Makro Public Company Limited,
all of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand. He is also
the Chairman of True Visions Public Company Limited.

Mr. Li Wen Hai, aged 56, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since September 2006. He was re-designated as Vice
Chairman of the Company with effect from 18 April 2008 and
re-designated as Senior Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company with effect from 22 October 2013. Mr. Li obtained
a Master degree in Business Administration from Huazhong Normal
University, PRC and is a senior economist. He has extensive
experience in retail business.

Mr. Narong Chearavanont, aged 49, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2001. He was re-designated as
Vice Chairman of the Company in September 2006. He obtained a
Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from New
York University, USA, Certificate of Advance Management Program
in Transforming Proven Leaders into Global Executives from
Harvard Business School, Harvard University, USA and an Honorary
Doctorate degree of Business Administration from Ramkamhaeng
University, Thailand. Mr. Narong Chearavanont has extensive
experience in the retail and trading industries. He is a director of
True Corporation Public Company Limited, CP ALL Public Company
Limited and Siam Makro Public Company Limited, all of which are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand. Mr. Narong Chearavanont
is also a director of True Visions Cable Public Company Limited.
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Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed, aged 51, has been an Executive
Director and Vice Chairman of the Company since 1 April 2012.
He obtained a Bachelor degree from the University of Chicago,
USA and a Master degree from the Sloan School of Management,
Massachusetts Institute of Technology, USA. Mr. Chan was a
Regional Director North Asia of the Diary Farm Group and a director
of Dairy Farm Management Services Limited from November
2001 to October 2006. He was the President and Chief Executive
Officer of Walmart China from October 2006 to October 2011. Mr.
Chan is currently a Vice Chairman of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited. He is also a non-executive director of Treasury
Wine Estates Limited, a company listed on the Australian Securities
Exchange.

Mr. Michael Ross, aged 49, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since September 2006. He was re-designated as
Executive Vice Chairman of the Company with effect from 1 May
2008 and ceased to hold such position with effect from 1 September
2010. Mr. Ross has been re-designated as Vice Chairman of the
Company with effect from 1 January 2012. He obtained a Master
degree in Science from University of Salford, United Kingdom
and a Bachelor degree in Hospitality Management from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, Hong Kong. He has completed an
Executive Program at the Kennedy School of Government of
Harvard University in USA in 2009. He has extensive experience
in retail business. Since joining Lotus Supercenter in 1999, he had
served in major key positions in Business Development, Operations
and Merchandising. During this period, Mr. Ross had also served as
Regional President in Southern Region & Eastern Region of Lotus.
Mr. Ross is currently serving as a member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (CPPCC) Shanghai Pudong New
Area Committee since June 2013.

Mr. Yang Xiaoping, aged 50, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since April 2000. He was re-designated as Vice
Chairman of the Company with effect from 14 May 2007 and ceased
to hold such position with effect from 1 September 2010. Mr.
Yang has been re-designated as Vice Chairman of the Company
with effect from 1 January 2012. He has more than 20 years’ of
extensive experience in the international trading and investment
in the PRC and has good contact with central, provincial and
municipal governors. Mr. Yang is a non-executive director of Ping
An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd., a company listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont, aged 55, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since 2005. He obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics from Occidental College, California, USA and a Master
degree in Business Administration from New York University, USA.
Mr. Jiaravanont has extensive experience in investment, finance,
banking and strategic business development in Asia and USA. He
is currently a non-executive director of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd., a
company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. He is currently also the Senior Executive Assistant
to the Chairman-Finance of Charoen Pokphand Group Company
Limited and a director of CPPC Public Company Limited.
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Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont, aged 47, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2000. He obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree in Business Administration from Boston University
in USA, majoring in Financial Management. Mr. Suphachai
Chearavanont has extensive experience in the telecommunication
and broadcasting industries. He is an executive director of C.P.
Pokphand Co. Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, a director, President and
Chief Executive Officer of True Corporation Public Company Limited
and a director of Siam Makro Public Company Limited, both of
which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand. Mr. Suphachai
Chearavanont is also a director and Chief Executive Officer of True
Visions Public Company Limited and True Move Company Limited.

Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong, aged 61, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2005. He was appointed as a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company in
December 2006. He obtained a Bachelor and a Master degree in
Accounting from Thammasat University, Thailand and has extensive
experience in financial management. Mr. Sanphasitvong is currently
a director of True Corporation Public Company Limited, CP ALL
Public Company Limited, Siam Makro Public Company Limited,
all of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand, and of
CPPC Public Company Limited. He is also the Deputy Group Chief
Financial Officer of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited.

Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul, aged 60, has been appointed
as Executive Director of the Company since 1 September 2010.
He obtained a Bachelor Degree majoring in Marketing from
Ramkhamhaeng University, Thailand. He has extensive experience
in marketing and retail business. Mr. Titasattavorakul is a Vice
Chairman of Executive Committee and a director of CP ALL Public
Company Limited and a director of Siam Makro Public Company
Limited, both of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Thailand.

Mr. Viroj Sangsnit, aged 78, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company and a member of Audit
Committee of the Company since 1999. He is also a member of
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He was appointed as a
member of Nomination Committee of the Company with effect from
1 April 2012. Mr. Sangsnit was the Deputy Minister of Transport
from 1991 to 1992 and the Deputy of Minister of Defense in 1996 in
Thailand.
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Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara, aged 63, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee of the Company since 1 April 2012.
He obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the Chulachomklao
Royal Military Academy, Thailand and graduated from National
Defence College of Thailand. Mr. Jaggabatara has served in the
Royal Thai Armed Forces for 39 years and has been appointed as
Chief of Defence Forces of the Royal Thai Armed Forces effective
1 October 2008. He retired from the Royal Thai Armed Forces on
30 September 2011. Mr. Jaggabatara is currently an Advisor to
Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited, a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Mr. Itthaporn Subhawong, aged 62, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 31 December 2012.
He graduated from National Defence College of Thailand. Mr.
Subhawong has served in the Royal Thai Air Force (“RTAF”) for 37
years and was appointed as Air Chief Marshal of the RTAF in 2007.
He was appointed the 21st Commander-in-Chief of the RTAF on
1 October 2008. Mr. Subhawong retired from Commander-in-Chief
of the RTAF on 30 September 2012.

Mr. Prasobsook Boondech, aged 68, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 31 December 2012.
He obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree from Thammasat University,
Thailand. Mr. Boondech was admitted as Barrister-at-Law, Institute
of Legal Education, Thai Bar Association, Thailand in 1967 and
Barrister-at-Law, Lincoln’s Inn, England in 1972. He has extensive
experience in the legal field and is a lecturer on Family Law, Faculty
of Law, Chulalongkorn University and Institute of Legal Education,
Thai Bar Association, Thailand. Mr. Boondech was the President of
the Senate of Thailand from 2008 to 2011.

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, aged 53, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Company since 2004. He was a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company and became its
Chairman on 1 April 2012, when he also became a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheng obtained a
Master of Science (Economics) degree, majoring in Accounting and
Finance from London School of Economics, England and a Bachelor
of Arts (Honours) degree in Accounting from University of Kent,
England. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Cheng has over 20 years’ of
expertise in accounting, finance and corporate advisory services.

Mr. Cheng is currently an independent non-executive director
of CSI| Properties Limited, Chong Hing Bank Limited, HKC
(Holdings) Limited, Goldbond Group Holdings Limited, CPMC
Holdings Limited, Imagi International Holdings Limited, Top Spring
International Holdings Limited and Liu Chong Hing Investment
Limited, all of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 20183.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Through its
subsidiaries, the Company is principally engaged in the operation of
large scale hypermarket stores located in the northern, southern and
eastern parts of China.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 42 of
the financial statements.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year (2012: Nil).

FIXED ASSETS

During the year, the Group spent approximately RMB213,853,000
on additions of fixed assets mainly for opening of new stores and
the store renovation.

Details of movements in the fixed assets during the year are set out
in note 11 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 26 to
the financial statements.

On 8 November 2013, 610,800,660 ordinary shares of par value of
HK$0.02 each were issued at a price of HK$0.1865 per share as a
result of the exercise of all the outstanding share options granted on
10 November 2003. Net proceeds from the shares issued amounted
to HK$113,914,000.

During the year, 980,000 ordinary shares were issued in connection
with the conversion of same number of Series C convertible
preference shares.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
distributions shall be payable out of the profits of the Company.
Accordingly, the Company had distributable reserves of
HK$968,905,000 (equivalent to RMB891,463,000 as at 31 December
2013 (2012: HK$983,037,000 (equivalent to RMB902,739,000)).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
turnover for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

Save for certain transactions disclosed in the section entitled
“Continuing Connected Transactions” in this report, none of
the directors, their associates, or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) of the Company has any interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont
Mr. Li Wen Hai

Mr. Narong Chearavanont
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed
Mr. Michael Ross

Mr. Yang Xiaoping

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit

Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara

Mr. Itthaporn Subhawong

Mr. Prasobsook Boondech

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs. Soopakij Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont,
Umroong Sanphasitvong, Viroj Sangsnit and Cheng Yuk Wo, will
retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”).
Details of the directors proposed to be re-elected at the forthcoming
AGM have been set out in the relevant circular to be despatched to
the shareholders of the Company.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are
appointed for a term of one year, which is renewable and are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM of the
Company in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) and considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in note 6 to the

financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding
company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2013, the directors were not aware that any
of the directors has interest in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group which falls to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (Continued)

() Long positions in shares/underlying shares of the Company

EENBERTTHRAERRKR®S - 8
ERODESETFER 2ERR

xR (&)

() RELXTHFAZRG HBERG

Number of
shares/ Approximate
underlying percentage of
Name of directors Notes shares held shareholding
BEZR®/ ERE
EZEl Mt HERGHE BREHL
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont HEAEE (1) 183,240,198 1.76%
Mr. Narong Chearavanont B EE ) 183,240,198 1.76%
Mr. Yang Xiaoping mNFEE ) 183,240,198 1.76%
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont HEEEE ©) 61,080,066 0.59%
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont HRCRE () 183,240,198 1.76%
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvong % 4% 1 183,240,198 1.76%

Notes:

(i)

M

@

It represents 122,160,132 issued shares and 61,080,066
underlying shares in respect of the share options granted by the
Company, details of which are stated under the section headed
“Share Option Schemes” below.

It represents 61,080,066 underlying shares in respect of the share
options granted by the Company, details of which are stated
under the section headed “Share Option Schemes” below.

Director’s interests in shares of associated corporations

(1) BtJ3122,160,132KRE TR M K
61,080,066 BB L 7% KB R E 2 48
B4 - BRI T BT 8 —
BR °

(2) 1£J361,080,066/ B RA LN A% L AR HE
%jﬁ@%ﬂ%} CHBHEN N TR B
2 |—fo

(i) ESREREEZRMOER

Approximate

Name of associated Number of percentage of

Name of directors corporations shares held shareholding
BRE

EZEB HEEE AR FAEZRGEE BAOBME
Mr. Li Wen Hai Kinghill Limited 171,428 0.05%
ZHEBRE
Mr. Yang Xiaoping Kinghill Limited 171,428 0.05%
BNFEE
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Charoen Pokphand Foods Public 1,400,000 0.02%
Umroong Sanphasitvong 4% & Company Limited

NERREEBRAR (KR)
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul Charoen Pokphand Foods Public 700,000 0.01%

Piyawat Titasattavorakul 5t £

Company Limited
NERREEBRAR (KR)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had any interest or
short positions in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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PERSONS WHO HAVE AN INTEREST
OR SHORT POSITIONS WHICH IS
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO AND
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2013, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of SFO shows
that the following shareholders had notified the Company of the
relevant interests in the issued share capital of the Company:
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of shareholders Notes shares held shareholding
RRE® Bt HERG#E B
C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment (1) 18,083,521,003 173.74%
Company Limited (“CPH”) Company Limited ([ CPH])
Worth Access Trading Limited Worth Access Trading Limited (1) 18,083,521,003 173.74%
(“Worth Access”) (TWorth Access ])
CPG Overseas Company Limited CPG Overseas Company Limited (1) 18,083,521,003 173.74%
(“CPG Overseas”) (TCPG Overseas )
Charoen Pokphand Group Charoen Pokphand Group (1) 18,083,521,003 173.74%
Company Limited (“CPG”) Company Limited ([CPG]J)
Bangkok Bank Public BARTEREDT © 18,083,521,003 173.74%
Company Limited, (TEART))
Hong Kong Branch (“BBL”")
Krung Thai Bank Public Krung Thai Bank Public () 18,083,521,003 173.74%
Company Limited (“KTB”) Company Limited ([KTB ) @) 18,083,521,003 173.74%
The Siam Commercial Bank The Siam Commercial Bank
Public Company Limited, Public Company Limited,
Hong Kong Branch (“SCB”) #7217 ([SCBJ)
Thanachart Bank Public Thanachart Bank Public 2) 18,083,521,003 173.74%
Company Limited (“TBL”) Company Limited ([TBL)
Thanachart Capital Public Thanachart Capital Public ) 18,083,521,003 173.74%

Limited Company (“TCL")

Notes:

Limited Company ([TCL)

(1)  Worth Access had declared an interest in the same 18,083,521,003
shares in which CPH had declared an interest by virtue of Worth
Access’ shareholding in CPH. CPG Overseas had declared an interest
in the same 18,083,521,003 shares by virtue of its shareholding
in Worth Access. CPG had declared an interest in the same
18,083,521,003 shares by virtue of its shareholding in CPG Overseas.

(2) BBL, KTB, SCB and TBL (the “Banks”) had declared an interest in the
same 18,083,521,003 shares in which CPH had declared an interest as
CPH had entered into an agreement with the Banks under section 317
of the SFO. TCL had declared an interest in the same 18,083,521,003
shares in which TBL had declared an interest by virtue of TCL’s

shareholding in TBL.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the

Company as at 31 December 2013.

B &E -

(1)  Worth Access‘A i B # CPH = 1% #& i [3] B
HCPHE 2 i 218,083,521,003 % I 12 fE &5 o
CPG Overseas2 ffi A # HWorth AccessZ &
T [ 4 ¥ 5 18,083,521,003 % A% 19 #E % o
CPGA#E#EAECPG Overseasz IR M E 4
#53%18,083,521,003/R IR 17 fE 2% o

(2) ECPHEEZE NI IT KTB  SCBRTBL (IR
BT T LHE REZHGEME317
% BETAMECPHEEEEHE A G 2
18,083,521,003R 0 #E#= - TCLA M A
BEETBLZBREMB &R EBTBLE A 2
18,083,521,003% IR 7 fE 2% o

BRUAERBEESI  ARRR-ZT-—=F+=8
=t -REEEENABACRTRAD ZME
AHMERIKE

>
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The share option scheme adopted by shareholders of the Company
on 31 May 2002 (the “Old Scheme”) expired on 30 May 2012. The
shareholders of the Company approved the termination of the
Old Scheme and the adoption of a new share option scheme (the
“New Scheme”) in place of the Old Scheme at the annual general
meeting of the Company on 22 June 2012. Upon the termination
of the Old Scheme, no further options would be granted under the
Old Scheme. However, the rules of the Old Scheme would remain
in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the
exercise of any option granted prior to its termination, or otherwise
to the extent as may be required in accordance with the rules of
the Old Scheme. All options granted under the Old Scheme prior
to its termination would continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the rules of the Old Scheme.

Pursuant to the Old Scheme, the Company had on 6 June 2002,
10 November 2003 and 24 May 2005 granted to certain grantees the
rights to subscribe for ordinary shares in the capital of the Company
at exercise prices of HK$0.07, HK$0.19 and HK$0.11 per share
respectively. Under the rules of the Old Scheme, adjustments to
the exercise price and number of outstanding share options were
made from the date of completion of the open offer on 23 December
2011. The exercise prices were adjusted to HK$0.0687, HK$0.1865
and HK$0.1080 per share respectively. On 29 May 2012, the shares
options granted on 6 June 2002 were fully exercised at the exercise
price of HK$0.0687 and the weighted average closing price of
the ordinary shares of the Company immediately before the date
of exercising the share options was HK$0.2678. On 8 November
2013, the shares options granted on 10 November 2003 were fully
exercised at the exercise price of HK$0.1865 and the weighted
average closing price of the ordinary shares of the Company
immediately before the date of exercising the share options was
HK$0.2235.

As at 31 December 2013, there were 610,800,660 outstanding share
options to subscribe for a total of 610,800,660 ordinary shares, of
which no share options to subscribe for ordinary shares have been
exercised, lapsed, and cancelled under the Old Scheme and no
options were granted under the New Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) BRESTE (&)
Details of the movements in share options under the Old Scheme RER  REEZI-ERESHFBEHRYIM
during the year are as follows: T
Number of share options
BREYA
Adjusted Asati Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Asat 31
Category of participant Date of grant Exercisable period  exercise price  January 2013 during the year during the year during the year ~during the year December 2013
W-E-=% H-%-zF
SEAEH =k fRER ABEZORE -f-B  EEmRE  FERAR  FEREE  FERAR fTZRSt-H
HK$
B
(i) Directors €%
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont 10 November 2003 10 November 2003 to 9 November 2013 0.1865 61,080,066 - 61,080,066 - - -
HEARE ZETZET-A1H ZERCET-ATHE
ZE-ZET-ANA
24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 23 May 2015 0.1080 61,080,086 - - - - 61,080,086
“ETRERACTRA ZEERERFCTMAE
E-RFRACTER
Mr. Narong Chearavanont 10 November 2003 10 November 2003 to 9 November 2013 0.1865 61,080,066 - 61,080,066 - - -
EiE S ZEEZET-ATH ZERZET-ATHE
E-ZET-ANA
24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 23 May 2015 0.1080 61,080,066 - - - - 61,080,066
“ZERFRACTRA “EERERF-TMAZ
ZE-RERACTEH
Mr. Yang Xiaoping 10 November 2003 10 November 2003 to 9 November 2013 0.1865 61,080,066 - 61,080,066 - - -
BTEE ZEEZET-A1H CBEZEL-ATHE
E-ZET-AnA
24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 23 May 2015 0.1080 61,080,086 - - - - 61,080,066
“ZERFEACTMA ZEERERF-TMAZ
ZE-RERACT=R
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont 24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 23 May 2015 0.1080 61,080,066 - - - - 61,080,066
Anfkrt ZEERERACTMA ZEERERACTMAE
ZE-RE1RCTER
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont 10 November 2003 10 November 2003 to 9 November 2013 0.1865 61,080,066 - 61,080,066 - - -
ABCEE ZEERZET-ATH ZERZET-ATHE
ZE-ZET-ANA
24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 23 May 2015 0.1080 61,080,066 - - - - 61,080,066
“ZRRERACTMA ZETRERACTHOAE
ZE-RERFCTIH
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong 10 November 2003 10 November 2003 to 9 November 2013 0.1865 61,080,066 - 61,080,066 - - -
Umroong Senphasitvongis ~ —EE=£+-A1A EEZET-ATRE
ZE-ZET-ANA
24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 23 May 2015 0.1080 61,080,086 - - - - 61,080,086
ZEZREIACTRA “ETIFRACTMAZ
ZE-RERACT=R
(ii) Other participants 10 November 2003 10 November 2003 to 9 November 2013 0.1865 305,400,330 - 305,400,330 - - -
in aggregate ZEEZET-AtH ZEEZET-A1RE
HigRAER ZE-ZE-ANA
24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 23 May 2015 01080 244,320,264 - - - - 244320264
EZIFIACTMA ZERRERA-TMAZ
ZE-RERFCTZR
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 OF
LISTING RULES

On 29 November 2011, the Company entered into an agreement
(the “Facility Agreement”) with a group of banks in Thailand
pursuant to the terms and subject to the conditions of which, the
Company was granted a term loan facility of US$28 million, the
principal outstanding amount of which is required to be repaid by
12 installments commencing in June 2013 up to and until December
2018.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it would be an event of default
thereunder if the controlling shareholder of the Company, CPH fails
to legally and beneficially own (directly or indirectly) at least 51% of
the total issued and paid up ordinary shares in the Company. As at
the date of this report, CPH is interested in approximately 65.22%
of the total ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the capital of the
Company in issue.

The occurrence of the aforesaid event of default would render all
outstanding liabilities of the Company under the Facility Agreement
to become immediately due and payable.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE
13.51B(1) OF LISTING RULES

Messrs. Soopakij Chearavanont and Yang Xiaoping were appointed
as non-executive directors of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company
of China, Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, with effect from 17 June 2013.

Messrs. Soopakij Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont,
Suphachai Chearavanont, Umroong Sanphasitvong and Piyawat
Titasattavorakul were appointed as directors of Siam Makro Public
Company Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Thailand, with effect from 16 July 2013.

Mr. Li Wen Hai was a Vice Chairman of the Company. He has been
re-designated as a Senior Vice Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company with effect from 22 October 2013.

The Chinese name of Mr. Narong Chearavanont was changed from

W8T to WM.

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo retired as an independent non-executive director
of South China Land Limited, a company listed on the GEM Board
of the Stock Exchange, with effect from 7 May 2013. He resigned
as an executive director of 21 Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, with effect from
31 December 2018.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Purchase and Supply Agreements

On 19 October 2010, the Company entered into the OSIL-CCT
Purchase Agreement with Orient Success International Limited
(“OSIL”) to purchase certain merchandise from OSIL and OSIL
Related Entities for the term from 1 January 2011 to 31 December
2013.

On 19 October 2010, the Company entered into the 2010 CPH
Supply Agreement with CPH under which any subsidiaries of
the Company would supply certain merchandise to CPH and
certain CPH Related Entities for the term from 1 January 2011 to
31 December 2018.

Leases and Sub-leases

On 19 October 2010, Shanghai Lotus Supermarket Chain Store
Co., Ltd. (“SLS”) and Shanghai Kinghill Ltd. (L% RERERA
Fl) (“Shanghai Kinghill”) entered into the 2010 Super Brand Mall
Lease in relation to a portion of the Super Brand Mall situated at
No. 168 Lujiazui Xi Road, Pudong New District, Shanghai, the PRC,
with a total floor area of approximately 13,500 square meters for the
monthly rental of RMB1,500,000, equivalent to an annual rental of
RMB18,000,000 for the term from 1 January 2011 to 31 December
2013.

On 28 December 2012, SLS and Chia Tai Commercial Real Estate
Management Co., Ltd. (EAEEXE#EEEABRAF) (“CTCREM”)
(on behalf of itself and its wholly-owned subsidiary, E£J&IER4E
SEBEEAMR2QE (“Shanghai ZDSH”)) entered into the 2013 SLS
Sub-Lease, for the term from 1 January 2013 to 31 December
2013, for a monthly rental of RMB1,389,000 from 1 January 2013 to
31 December 2013, equivalent to an annual rental of RMB16,668,000,
plus (i) a commission of 5% on the excess of subletting rental
income received by CTCREM and/or Shanghai ZDSH over the
rental receivable by SLS under the 2013 SLS Sub-Lease; (i) a
commission of 15% on the advertising and promotion income
received by Shanghai ZDSH derived from the property located at
Level 1, No. 541 Tian Shan Xi Lu, Chang Ning District, Shanghai,
the PRC, with an area of approximately 8,600 square meters; and
(iily a commission of 15% on the advertising and promotion income
received by CTCREM derived from the property located at No. 2128
Yang Gao Zhong Lu, Pudong New District, Shanghai, the PRC, with
an area of approximately 6,527 square meters.

Details of the abovementioned continuing connected transactions
are set out in the announcements dated 19 October 2010,
14 October 2011 and 28 December 2012 and circulars dated
4 November 2010 and 1 November 2011.

Report of the Directors

ESHRESE

BEERERS
RS
RZE—-ZFF+ A+ NH  &A2QF EOrient

Success International Limited ([OSIL]) 5T 32
OSILEHERMER S HEHZE U [OSILEOSIL
HECERBETER  EHBE=2——&F—
B—HBEE-Z—=%+-"A=+—HLt-

RZZE-ZF+H+HB » ZAFECPHET X
—E-ZFCPHHEERE  ERARQT 2EM
B AT R ECPHNR # TCPHABR X MER
TEm FHE-ZE——F—HA—HBZE=F
—=F+ZA=+—Hi-

HEWHRED B

RZEBE—ZFE+A+IB LEZFNERE
BT ARAR (LSRR E TR
RERAA(LEEBFHRNITLZE—FFIE
RESHEGZEBUNTE LT HR
BEREAKIEEERES ZH » 412
EEENI3S0FE X HE SRHESAE
AR ¥1,500,0007T ' HENEFHEARYE
18,000,000t » FHHE-ZE——F—H—HE
EE-—=f+"-A=+—Hi-

RZB—ZF+ZA=+N\H LBERET
ABE£EHEEEAERAA (EAFE]D (K
RABREZEMBARLELEEREZTEES
BRAB(EEEFREEN))IT L -ZE—=FL
BEELENE  FPE=-E-=F—HA—H
BEZE-—=F+=-A=+—HLt r=ZE—=
F—A—HEZE-ZF+=-A=+—HzZE
A& A ARYE1,389,0007 ' HHEREEHR
& AR#16,668,0007t ' M EEABEER,
REBEEFREPHRABRER=ZT—=F£
BERSEABBTLEERRRIMES=HE
5%2le () EBEEFEEREEENUAS
HEEmREBRILUARKS4IFLIBEZYE (H
B#8,600F 5 K) 2 EEREEWA15% 28
& RNEXBEREEBRBVNTELETH
RIESESTK2128%5E 2 W2 (HEN6,527F
FR)ZCEERERBRA15%2HE o

PRz HEBRERZHFRRANR-_ZE—ZF+A
THhE =F-——F+ATOBER=F-=F
+ZAZH+NBZAERZE—EF+—A@
BR—Z——F+—B—HZBHRRA -

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&sETEH R

36




37

Report of the Directors

EEHRESE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The Chearavanont Shareholders, through CPG, a company in which
they have a combined 51.31% shareholding interest, are interested
in approximately 65.22% in aggregate of the ordinary shares of
the Company in issue, and are therefore collectively the controlling
shareholders of the Company. As the Chearavanont Shareholders
and their associates, on an aggregate basis, are collectively also
the controlling shareholders of Shanghai Kinghill, CTCREM and
OSIL, Shanghai Kinghill, CTCREM and OSIL are associates of and
connected persons of the Company for the purposes of the Listing
Rules. Since CPH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CPG, CPH is a
connected person of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules.

The transactions contemplated under each of the 2010 Super Brand
Mall Lease and the 2013 SLS Sub-Lease constituted continuing
connected transactions exempt from independent shareholders’
approval but were subject to reporting and announcement
requirements under the Listing Rules.

The transactions contemplated under the OSIL-CCT Purchase
Agreement and the 2010 CPH Supply Agreement constituted non-
exempt continuing connected transactions for the Company within
the meaning of the Listing Rules and they were approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company on 29 November 2010
and 23 November 2011.

The actual transactions and approved annual caps for the
abovementioned continuing connected transaction agreements
during the year from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013 are as
follows:

FEREXS (&)

HEXERREBRES HIFHS1.31%KRE
Z—RATFCPG EHFEALACHTER
R#65.22% % AL DEH_AADT 2=
BRIRR - ARBRRERREKEZHEAL
EHRHTR/EEFR - EXBHEROSILZEZER
BRER - RELHHRAY - LBFR - EXBEER
OSILIARDRZBMBALTRBEAL ~HR
CPHJ3CPGZ —ZHEZEMBATE » RIE\ELTHHR
Bl CPHAXRRB ZBEAL -

—P-BEEARSEEHAR=F—=FL
BELAEBBAT 2 XS BALHRATE
BB RRMERT 2 HERER DR AE
BELTRAGHEBRAEZAE o

OSILFERERSHBHER _-ZE—FFCPH
HEHBZETZXIBRLETHRYTARALITTR
ERREEEERS  YER=-ZE-ZF+—
BEZt+hBRZE——F+—AZ+=HEXK
DB 2B IREALAE -

ERSEEER R BN =B =5 — 5 —F
E-2-=f+_A=+-A2EERNIEE
RPRENFE RN

Actual Approved
Transactions Annual Caps
EHMEE
BBRRS LBR
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBT T
Non-exempt continuing connected TEREIFEEEE
transaction agreements: XEZ e -
OSIL-CCT Purchase Agreement OSILFERERZHBHE 123,398 393,200
2010 CPH Supply Agreement —ZE-ZTFCPHHERZ 702,090 1,124,100
Exempt continuing connected ERRIFEREE
transaction agreements: XEH#E
2010 Super Brand Mall Lease —E-EZFEXRESHEHE 18,000 18,000
2013 SLS Sub-Lease “E-ZFLBERESENR 18,372 19,000
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements (HKSAE) 3000 “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the transactions were entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(o) on normal commercial terms no less favourable to the
Company than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Schemes”
above, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The Audit Committee has reviewed with
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed internal control and financial reporting
matters, including the review of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at
the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

Messrs. KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs.
KPMG as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Soopakij Chearavanont
Director

Hong Kong, 24 February 2014
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Independent auditor’s report to the

shareholders of C.P. Lotus Corporation
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C.P.
Lotus Corporation (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) set out on pages 42 to 113, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2013, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHMBES

Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2013 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 February 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

At 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
RZFB-Z=5+ZA=+-H(UAR®TREN)

2013 2012
—E-=F —E-C—F
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
M 5 AR¥T AR TR
(note 37)
(P 5E37)
Turnover EHEH 2 10,881,553 10,677,425
Cost of sales $HER A 16 (9,088,212) (8,914,309)
Gross profit EF 1,793,341 1,763,116
Other revenue H Ak & 3 503,058 463,823
Other net income/(loss) Hipg X (F518) F 4 3 33,371 (35,783)
Distribution and store operating costs BE AR EEHR AR (1,932,936) (1,999,421)
Administrative expenses THEA (335,873) (422,907)
Profit/(loss) from operations LR (FE) 60,961 (231,172)
Finance costs A& KA 4(a) (82,082) (93,322)
Loss before taxation BREBIRIE B 4 (21,121) (324,494)
Income tax Frig®t 5 (75,801) (67,145)
Loss for the year FEEE (96,922) (391,639)
Attributable to: BT AL :

Equity shareholders of the Company FNTNEST (96,837) (391,530)
Non-controlling interests JEIERER (85) (109)
(96,922) (391,639)

Loss per share BREE 10
Basic (RMB cents) EXR(AR%E D) (0.46) (1.88)
Diluted (RMB cents) BEAR%®S) (0.46) (1.88)

The notes on pages 48 to 113 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeEaRHAEEBAREK

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
BE-Z-ZF+ZAZ+-HLEFE(UAR¥TREN)

2013 2012
—EBE—-=F —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
M 5 AR TR AR TR
(note 37)
(P =E37)

Loss for the year FEEEB (96,922) (391,639)
Other comprehensive income FEHEME2EWRA

for the year (after tax and (RBRES>ERAER)

reclassification adjustments)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently HEZTESEZEER

to profit or loss: ZIERH :
Exchange differences on translation of BEREARLM

financial statements of entities outside (TR ERD) BASh A B B 75

the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) BEZEHLEZLE 3,535 (1,222)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZ2HEW A5 (93,387) (392,861)
Attributable to: TR AL :
Equity shareholders of the Company FNNEST (93,302) (392,752)
Non-controlling interests FIERER (85) (109)

(93,387) (392,861)

The notes on pages 48 to 113 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B IR R R 3R

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

31 December

(AAR®TREMN)

31 December

2013 2012
—E—=f —E_—f&
+=ZA=t—-H| +=ZB=+—*H
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
Mt & ARBTR ARB TR
Non-current assets *RBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 11
- Property, plant and equipment -ME-BERRE 1,722,800 1,682,541
- Interests in leasehold land held for -—EEHE AL
own use under operating leases HEER 147,946 154,240
1,870,746 1,836,781
Intangible assets BEERE 12 206,027 219,180
Goodwill meE 13 3,154,278 3,154,278
Prepaid lease payments for premises BAYERESE 15 30,159 35,674
Other long-term prepayments HittRMENER 7,162 9,987
Deferred tax assets BEERBEE 25(b) 22,934 65,112
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 5,201,306 | 5,321,012
Current assets RBEE
Prepaid lease payments for premises BENNEXHEE 15 11,434 8,944
Inventories T—?f 16 1,105,598 908,635
Trade and other receivables EERHMERIE 17 852,461 847,944
Pledged bank deposits SRR ITER 18 104,461 214,831
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBELEE 19 266,156 415,974
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 2,340,110 | 2,396,328
Current liabilities nREBEE
Trade and other payables 2B R H At FE T R 20 4,102,775 3,935,625
Bank loans RITER 21 70,906 1,258,192
Other loans &N 22 40,822 152,100
Obligations under finance leases MEHEET 23 7,783 6,677
Current taxation AR IR 25(a) 19,009 17,214
Provisions Bk 24 830 56,331
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 4,242,125 | 5,426,139
Net current liabilities nBeEFEE | . (1902015 | (3,029,811)
Total assets less current liabilities REERABAE | . 3,389,201 | 2,291,201
Non-current liabilities 3F/)|b§i]ﬁ1$
Bank loans RITER 21 1,099,316 -
Obligations under finance leases wﬂl é* f’t:f Ea 23 172,647 180,430
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 25(b) 47,812 38,031
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 1,319,775 | 218,461
NET ASSETS EERE 2,069,516 2,072,740
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRRE
Share capital R 26(a) 396,003 386,424
Reserves GXE] 1,671,670 1,684,478
Total equity attributable to equity RAABRRELEER
shareholders of the Company . 2,067,763 2,070,902
Non-controlling interests FERER 1,753 1,838
TOTAL EQUITY BEEH 2,069,516 2,072,740
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 RZ-ZE—-—NE-_A-F+NHEZESEHRERFE
February 2014. RETIE -

Soopakij Chearavanont Umroong Sanphasitvong

(=]
Director Director
EE EZ
The notes on pages 48 to 113 form part of these financial statements. FASE113E Z M sE I RBF FE IR & 2 BB 1D ©
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Statement of Financial Position

B #55iR L 3R

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
(AAR¥MTHREN)

31 December

31 December

2013 2012
—B-=F —Z2-=F
T=A=t—-B| t=A=1-H
Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
M & ARETR ARETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 11 699 1,277
Interests in subsidiaries I EENGE £ 14 3,441,116 3,430,921
Other long-term prepayments HtRBENLER 2,725 2,531
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 3,444,540 | 3484729
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables 2ERHEtEWRE 17 14,085 10,436
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBELEE 19 14,671 30,511
___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 28,756 | 40947
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables EERHAMEMSTRE 20 422,719 403,445
Bank loans RITEX 21 10,303 177,086
Other loans Hih &R 22 15,263 15,740
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 448,285 | 596211
Net current liabilites nBREFE | (419,529)|  (655324)
Total assets less current liabilites #RERRBRE [ 3,025,011 | 2,879,405
Non-current liabilities ¥ REBEE
Bank loans RITER 21 154,540 -
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 154540 -
NET ASSETS EEFH 2,870,471 2,879,405
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRRE
Share capital [N 26(a) 396,093 386,424
Reserves ] 27(a) 2,474,378 2,492,981
TOTAL EQUITY ESBEE 2,870,471 2,879,405

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

24 February 2014.

Soopakij Chearavanont

The notes on pages 48 to 113 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

LEREaBBRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
BE-Z-ZHF+ZA=Z+-HLEFE(UAR¥TREN)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AAARRER
Retained
Share eamings/ Non-
Share Share  Revaluation option Exchange (Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total interests Total
REEA/
A KB EE Efike BRERG Eiff (RHEB) BF  FERER &g

(note 26)  (note 27(c))  (note 27(c)  (note 27(c) (note 27(c))
(Wifoe)  (Wiore)  (W&ore)  (MEre)  (HWskere)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTR  ARETR  ARETR  AR®Tn  AR%TR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETn  ARETR

At 1 January 2012 R-E--5-f-H 340,614 1,339,132 (9,166) 53,841 233,573 42,544 2,000,538 1,947 2,002,485
Loss for the year FERE - - - - SRS (391530) (109 (391639
Other comprehensive income ~ EI2EHRA - - - - (1222) - (1,222) - (1222)

Total comprehensive income ~~ FE2FRALE
for the year - - - - (1222 (915%0) (392752 109 (392861)

Issue of Series D convertible RDAS AR

preference shares (note 26(a)) B (i&F26(a)) 35,855 393,065 - - - - 428,920 - 428,920
Shares issued upon exercise of  {TEBREME T2

share options (note 26(a)) Tt3 (iz26(e)) 9,955 24,241 - - - - 34,19 - 34,196
At 31 December 2012 RZB-ZE+ZB=+-0 386424 1,756,438 (9,166) 53,841 232,351 (348,986) 2,070,902 1,838 2,072,740
At1 January 2013 MZE-zZE-fB-H 386,424 1,756,438 (9,166) 53,841 232,351 (348,986) 2,070,902 1,838 2,072,740
Loss for the year EEFE - - - - - 96,837) (96,837) (85) (96,922)
Other comprehensive income ~ Ef2ENA - - - - 3,535 - 3,535 - 3,535

Total comprehensive income ~~ FE2ERALE

for the year - - - - 3,535 (96,837) (93,302) (85) (93,387)
Shares issued upon exercise of  TERREME T2

share options (note 26(a)) Tfh (HiEE26(a)) 9,669 80,494 - - - - 90,163 - 90,163

At 31 December 2013 RIZ-ZETZAZT-8 396,09 1,836,932 (9,166) 53,841 235,886 (445,823) 2,067,763 1,753 2,069,516

The notes on pages 48 to 113 form part of these financial Z48F113B M ANMBRE 245 o
statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GEREREHK

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
BE-Z-ZF+ZAZ+-HLEFE(UAR¥TREN)

2013 2012
—E-=F —E-CF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
WiEE AR®T R AR®TR
(note 37)
(Pt 5£37)
Operating activities HEXR
Loss before taxation BRBLAIE B (21,121) (324,494)
Adjustments for: BUTHE
Finance costs & A 4(a) 82,082 93,322
Interest income AMEWA 3 (7,554) (8,494)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEREEEZER 3 3,239 20,301
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - -BERREZTE 4(c) 164,625 191,236
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment  #13 ~ [ & 3 {8 2 i E & & 11(a) - 634
Amortisation of land lease premium THEEREL 4(c) 6,294 6,293
Amortisation of intangible assets BREECHBH 4(c) 13,153 13,152
Foreign exchange gain HMEETE 505 R (34,880) (3,572)
Operating profit/(loss) before changes EEESEBACEE
in working capital BA (BE) 205,838 (11,622)
Decrease/(increase) in prepaid lease ﬁﬁ% ELiih-§-
payments for premises w2,/ () 3,025 (27,473)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories T TE (imiJ[I) SR (196,963) 333,034
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits EEATHREGFERRER
pledged for inventory purchases and ZERZBRITER
guarantees to landlords J’X/‘/ 2 10) 110,370 (71,652)
Increase in trade and other receivables B E A EWEIEE M (4,517) (164,244)
Decrease in trade and other payables %E&Eﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬁﬂ‘ (28,351) (55,720)
Cash generated from operations BEEACRS 89,402 2,323
PRC tax paid B RERE 25(a) (22,047) (24.697)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EEEREL/(£RH)
operating activities ZEEFE 67,355 (22,374)
Investing activities REEK
Payment for purchases of fixed assets E%E;?ﬁ}*zﬁn (213,853) (281,369)
Net cash acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries WEMBLARMEG2RETE - 21,163
Interest received B WA E 7,554 8,494
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets HEBEEEZRE 5,699 3,174
Net cash used in investing activities REXEFERACESFE (200,600) (248,538)
Financing activities & £
Proceeds from bank loans RITER A - 1,084,023
Repayment of bank loans i ﬁﬁ,‘%ﬂz%% (50,338) (585,814)
Proceeds from other loans HMEZ 2R 95,000 420,000
Repayment of other loans ,H\ﬂﬂ‘gnzz%*k (65,000) (385,000)
Capital element of finance leases paid INRMERE2REHN (6,677) (6,052)
Interest element of finance leases paid X A3 ﬁ*ﬁ 5 2 FI & 17 (18,181) (18,806)
Interest on bank loans BASRZAE (51,459) (50,065)
Loan arrangement and guarantee fees paid YAERRERERER (1,683) (32,700)
Interest on other loans HMERZAE (742) (10,798)
Interest on issuance of bank accepted bills fEfT?éﬁZEKRE%‘%*UE (7,192) (4,427)
Net proceeds from exercise of share options THEBEREZNIEFE 26(a) 90,163 34,196
Net cash (used in)/generated from MELE (ER) EL
financing activities ZEEFE (16,109) 444 557
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRASZHCED) /#m
cash equivalents T (149,354) 173,645
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HeERER o HE (464) (51)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—-BzRE&REESH 415,974 242,380
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December Rt+ZRA=+—-HzHE
RAEEE 19 266,156 415,974

The notes on pages 48 to 113 form part of these financial Z48F113B M TIANIBHE 24 o
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 1(e) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”).

As the Group’s hypermarket stores are all located in
the PRC and most of the Group’s transactions are
conducted and denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), which
is the functional currency of the Company’s operating
subsidiaries, the financial statements are presented in
RMB, rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise
stated. The functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”).

The Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB97 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013. As at 31 December
2013, the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
RMB1,902 million.

In view of these circumstances, the directors have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources of
finance in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3R 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RSAERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The directors note that the Group’s profit from operations
for the year ended 31 December 2013 was approximately
RMB61 million, compared to a loss from operations
of approximately RMB231 million in the prior year. In
addition, the Group generated cash from operating
activities of approximately RMB67 million during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Based on the Group’s 2014 business plan and cash flow
forecast, the directors believe the Group will generate
sufficient cash flows to meet its liabilities as and when
they fall due in the next twelve months. In preparing the
cash flow forecast, the directors also consider the Group’s
ultimate holding company and its bankers will continue to
support the Group to the extent necessary. The directors
are of the opinion that the assumptions which are included
in the cash flow forecast are reasonable.

In view of the above, the directors consider that the Group
will generate sufficient financial resources for its working
capital and capital expenditure requirements and that it will
be able to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

Use of estimation and judgement

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 36.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESTEE (&)
(Continued)

(e) Change in accounting policies (e) EFFBEXZ2EE
The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and ERSHMASCHMEMSE TESE
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the Eﬂ%qeﬁiéEIJ&%.S,%E?H’%%&%&’EEUE’J
current accounting period of the Group and the Company. B3] RASEERA QR NHSH
Of these, the following developments are relevant to the FﬁE/)\Ei‘i o B, ITEBHEARE
Group’s financial statements. B2 B RS AHE o
e Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial o EBBEITERIE1S (BFITX) -
statements - Presentation of items of other 2B E - ZIEMEEK
comprehensive income AZIBEH
e HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements o EEBUBMEERF105E
,v‘\nﬁﬂ‘ﬁfﬁ%
e  HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities o EHEBMBEBEERFE12
B m 2 KE
e HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement o EBH ML ERF135E
AABEZEE
e Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle e _—_ETHNFE_T——FFBH
B E A 2 FEUGE
e Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Disclosures — Offsetting o EBUHMEERETE (BF]
financial assets and financial liabilities R)-RE-YHEHEERE
MEE
The Group has not applied any new standard or 7 62 [ A B B 51 HA R N SR BR AR 1A
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current EARERZE B EREEL ZFHE
accounting period (see note 38). The impact of the Al 258 (R KIEE38) o BRAW LA 57
adoption of the above new or amended HKFRSs is WG EBMERELER 2EEMN
discussed below: T
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial BBEIERF15 (1557F) - £
statements — Presentation of items of other comprehensive HH#RE -2 EMEEKRAZEE
income
Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to present BB ERE1E (BFTAR) IR E -
separately the items of other comprehensive income EHEETHRENERT »  BERAEK
that would be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if TEERBREFPEAEZENEMSE
certain conditions are met from those that would never EWABBEHEKIEEH L ELAEBR
be reclassified to profit or loss. The Group did not have HEMEZEBRAEBEESHZY - X&
any other comprehensive income that would never be B AEEAEMEAMBEAXKTIEE
reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, the Group has FoEAER o I REBERILE
chosen to use the new titles “Statement of profit or loss” A CEAAMEREREFRNEZEES
and “Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive (BRI kEBEaREM2EE AR
income” as introduced by the amendments in these *]oe
financial statements.
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements ?;;ﬁﬁiﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ% 109% + A B
=
HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27, EARAVEBRSEANZ105NREER
Consolidated and separate financial statements relating to HERENBRENEBSTEAFE27
the preparation of consolidated financial statements and 5 SHEIFHREREFEFEHRE L
HK-SIC 12, Consolidation — Special purpose entities. It k&R (EAREBEZET) REE12
introduces a single control model to determine whether an WO AH-—EHENEEZRE It
investee should be consolidated, by focusing on whether RS AE —E4IERN - LEEWIR
the entity has power over the investee, exposure or rights ERNAERTFUSHERE EE%E%:
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee FRAEERAEREFNWKRERATR
and the ability to use its power to affect the amount of SEWRE DT EKMSAUZEER
those returns. The adoption does not change any of the M E R AIESER - LUK EERE FE
control conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its NEEZSERSENEED - KA
involvement with other entities as at 1 January 2013. BEAFREHREREBRN - —=
F—RA—HYSHEAMBRERKME
BWEMEBZERELSENG®
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3R 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RSAERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EESHBER (8)

(Continued)
(e) Change in accounting policies (Continued) (e) EFFHEZESH (F)
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities BB IR EERFE 125 A
B 2 &
HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the EH ISR EER|E 10 IS S B A(E
disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s interests MEBAT S8 %2 BENF N
in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and AL BrERNESWTEEE
unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures B TEERE —EE « HBE
required by HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than KR EI2ERENINBESEERE
those previously required by the respective standards. WAERFFERNEAET - 11t
To the extent that the requirements are applicable to the HERERESER  AEET K
Group, the Group has provided those disclosures in note S1AEHR L ERE -
14.
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement BBUBHEERE135 - AAEZ
al 2
HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual EEISREERF13ELUE—D R
HKFRSs with a single source of fair value measurement B2 A B FERE SRR
guidance. HKFRS 13 also contains extensive disclosure LB EREIES - FEEREE
requirements about fair value measurements for both BS13ErfemIT ARISHMTA
financial instruments and non-financial instruments. The HWARBESEHESTEHIREERTE -
Group did not hold any assets or liabilities carried at fair REBNR -—_EBE—=FER_-_FE——F
value as at 31 December 2013 and 2012. The adoption of + o=+ —-BYFREEEMERE
HKFRS 13 does not have any material impact on the fair UAARBHECSENERE - HANE
value measurements of the Group’s assets and liabilities or BB EEAE13E R E e
the relevant disclosures. REBEERERBHN A ABELT 254
B E -
vements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle SEENERE_F— — FRBHBH
Annual Impro S Cy =52 BB S 1
This cycle of annual improvements contains amendments Ib 38 5 o B o B 4E IR R R 2 8 E]
to five standards with consequential amendments to other KRB EMERNRBEAETEE - 2
standards and interpretations. Among them, HKAS 1 has B BBER RSB UE
been amended to clarify that an opening statement of BE-EFHEYNRA S X
financial position is required only when a retrospective ENEFISETEN DR  HUBHR
application of an accounting policy, a retrospective MBERPADER2IEREATE
restatement or a reclassification has a material effect B BIZ8 2 51 b {5 58 15 69 5 40 B A% iR
on the information presented in the opening statement MR o AR - B HA R 69 H 90 B 7%
of financial position. The amendments also remove the AR R AEBM A B AZ S o &
requirement to present related notes to the opening SERYB R EEAEAREE 2 4
statement of financial position when such statement is SUBBEEERCEEMEL 28
presented. The Group did not have any retrospective WEASTER - BYEIINETE
application of an accounting policy, retrospective ok
restatement or a reclassification with a material impact to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group during
the periods presented.
Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Disclosures — Offsetting BB EERZTH (155T7) —
financial assets and financial liabilities HE-HHEHEEREHEE
The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of TSI A\ EEcREERSREE
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. Those M ZHIWEER - ZEHWEER
new disclosures are required for all recognised financial rECHEAESH I ERBEEITE
instruments that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32, A|EE32% A TH ZHRZAYN
Financial instruments: Presentation and those that are RAONEEREHEZHENBEER
subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or EMTERRG 2 HEEHERERE
similar agreement that covers similar financial instruments BRI AREREBRE B
and transactions, irrespective of whether the financial RIZE3258 EIR 8 - RIAEER 2 R
instruments are set off in accordance with HKAS 32. The BAREEKESRMTIE KRBT LE
adoption of the amendments does not have an impact MSEEVERSELETR 2 E
on these financial statements because the Group has not ERME] LW EEFEE =D ER
offset financial instruments, nor has it entered into any % BURMEETH AR EE 2 B R
master netting arrangement or similar agreement which is FI ML -

subject to the disclosures of HKFRS 7 during the periods
presented.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cashflows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and the total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3R 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RSAERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(k)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale) (see note 1(x)).

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree;
over (ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

Any excess of the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities over the fair value of the
consideration transferred is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(k)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 R 5 B
For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 TESTEEX (8)
(Continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (h) W% -BERKRE

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(k)):

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see
note 1(j)); and

- other items of plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives
adopted for the purpose of calculating depreciation during
the periods presented are as follows:

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 30
years after the date of completion.

2013 2012
- Leasehold 13-20 years or 10-20 years or
improvements over the remaining over the remaining

term of the lease,
whichever is shorter

term of the lease,
whichever is shorter

- Furniture, fixtures 3 -8 years 3 -5 years
and equipment
- Motor vehicles 3 -8 years 3 -6 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Stores under fit out represent the cost of leasehold
improvements and other fit out costs incurred to
date. Stores under fit out are transferred to leasehold
improvements and the relevant other asset categories when
the stores are substantially ready for their intended use. No
depreciation is provided in respect of stores under fit out.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3R 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

TESEBUR (&)

BE-Z-=F1+=-A=1+-HLFE(RIEHBN UAR¥ETHEN)
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets represent the favourable aspect of
operating leases relative to market terms acquired in
business combinations, where the acquiree is the lessee.
These intangible assets are recognised and measured at
fair value upon acquisition. The fair value is determined
based on a comparison of the market and contractual
rental rates at the date of acquisition.

Intangible assets associated with favourable aspects of
operating leases acquired in a business combination are
stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note
1(k)). Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the remaining lease term.

() Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

(i)  Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
are included in property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as
set out in note 1(h). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in note 1(k). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period
of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(j)) Leased assets (Continued)

(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.

(k) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of receivables

Current and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal repayments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on
the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of the assets),
where the effect of discounting is material.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3R 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RSAERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of receivables (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

— interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill;
—  prepaid lease payments for premises; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3R 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RSAERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

U]

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 1(k)(i) and 1(k)

(if)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the moving weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising
from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Trade and other receivables

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(k)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Preference share capital

Preference share capital is classified as equity if it is
non-redeemable, or redeemable only at the Company’s
option, and any dividends are discretionary. Dividends
on preference share capital classified as equity are
recognised as distributions within equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(t)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3R 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RSAERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9]

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in share option reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using
the binomial lattice model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the share option reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits/accumulated
losses).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3R 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z-=F1+=-A=1+-HLFE(RIEHBN UAR¥ETHEN)
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities
(i)  Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar
services, when such information is obtainable, or
is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can be
made. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 1(t)(ii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3R 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RSAERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EESHBER (8)

(Continued)
(t) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent () BHEHZHBER BERIREHE
liabilities (Continued) (%)

(i) Other provisions and contingent liabilities (i) BMEERILAEE
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of BEDEAEBRAQATEBESE
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the EmMEEZEEREEEEZRK
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising BB THEEcHMEE - I
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an BEUEBERNZRELTRET
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle REHTSEM4E  c BEEEEEREE
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. BEX BEFZRENTKRER
Where the time value of money is material, provisions ZEHBEBEAR-

are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic B &R S 2 7] B ERME
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be REFERGEEETRGEE  Z
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a EXSIREARAEE  HER
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow BRI 5 2 AT BEME R B BRI ©
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, EHR—ERZEARRBE 2
whose existence will only be confirmed by the AP REMBRREFEZA
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future BEEXTEHEANAEE  #
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities T BT R 2 A sE AR K & BR
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits h o
is remote.
(u) Revenue recognition () WARER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration WAREWREKRREZ A AES

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the 2o NREMRRITERARESR -

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue MU A RS (203 A ) BE A 5 #h 51

and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue 2R WABRTIEETREZ TR

is recognised in profit or loss as follows: 2

()  Sale of goods () HEEmD
Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and W AR 2 E KE & WS
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the EETEERER - WAL TRE
customers. Revenue excludes value added tax or IEIRERRNEMMBEER - A&
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade BREME ST -
discounts.

(i)  Rental income from operating leases (i) BEEZEHEZFHEKA
Rental income receivable under operating leases is EEHECENHEKRAERE
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over BiFrRE v 2t AL EEEE
the periods covered by the lease term, except where BEhER EEMEERETER
an alternative basis is more representative of the REEERREAEEEERM
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the EEzWEEXRS) - HERE
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised HEBEHEAAZRFTEVREE
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate RIEFHEZETEDRH - IRES
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals EHRE ST HEARR AW
are recognised as income in the accounting period in L

which they are earned.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v)

(iii) Promotion and service income

Promotion and service income not related to the
purchase of goods are recognised when the services
are rendered.

(iv) Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

(v) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

Translation of foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Except as noted below, exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3R 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RSAERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Translation of foreign currency (Continued)

The results of entities outside the PRC are translated
into Renminbi yuan (“RMB”) at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. The assets and liabilities of
entities outside the PRC are translated into RMB at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

Exchange differences arising from monetary items that
in substance form part of the net investment in foreign
operations are recognised in other comprehensive income
in the consolidated financial statements.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset, which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted
or complete.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as
held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount
will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is
available for sale in its present condition. A disposal group
is a group of assets to be disposed of together as a group
in a single transaction, and liabilities directly associated
with those assets that will be transferred in the transaction.

Annual Report 2013 %3k

1

TESEBUR (&)

(v)

(w)

(x)

S ()

REILLSNA B 2 RAERER 5 B 25
HERME2EZBRE[ARE T
([AR®]) - FBEIUINR B 2EER
BEARBERRZIMNEERRES
AR EECER ZMEANEA
2HEWA > WBIRARELFEEZ
A o

ENEEELCEAEZRELR LB
BHNEBIREGFE W ARSI
HREZHM2EBA -

HEEINERE - W E 2 BRI RE
BWER - BRI EBREZRIE
RERCBEHESENIEER
é o

BERA

BERAEHEWE RERLEEEE
BHEMERE  YRERBEARARERR
HHE  BTUERERZEEZ
J;E$ cHMBERARELHEBI

REENRXES  BERTEER
BAREERAREHENIEEMLA
BV TIEETR - EERAERSE
ERERBEREEZRAING - B

AREERABTERBERNHERLA
MEBTERLHTHE  BERS
BERMLBELSETLE -
FHEZFRBEE

ERFRBEE (RHEAS) 28k
E{ERATEEBHERZMIFEBE
BEAmEE - W EAMRRRHE
ZAFRBEE (FHEAS) WD
BRAFHE HEASE-4EEER
E-XZH-—HEH MEXZFEE
EEMEBzRERARRZTER -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

(v)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought
up-to-date in accordance with the accounting policies
before the classification. Then, on initial classification
as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained below),
or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. The
principal exceptions to this measurement policy so far as
the financial statements of the Group and the Company
are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising
from employee benefits and financial assets (other than
investments in subsidiaries). These assets, even if held for
sale, would continue to be measured in accordance with
the policies set out elsewhere in note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset
is classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale, the non-current
asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3R 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RSAERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EESHBER (8)

(Continued)
(y) Related parties (Continued) (y) #HBIAL (&)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) —REFEWRAHEREBIEE -
conditions applies: s AT AR AR 4R 4B F
(i) The entity and the Group are members of the )y ZExrHEAEEAR-—&
same group (which means that each parent, Bz E (BEFAT K
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the EENCACES - PR
others). ¥ HERE) o
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) —REXDZ-KEXRZ
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a BEQANEERR (HE
member of a group of which the other entity is a BREZHERARGE
member). tE - mMB-—REEHBK
8) o
(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MREXGHBEA-E=F
party. ZEEDRZE-
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy —REXER-RE=F1&
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. XROEEX MH—X
TEBZEZFEIHE
AF o
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v) ZEELHAEEN KA
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an AEEHEBEXZES
entity related to the Group. TREREFEE -
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (viy ZE¥ER L@@tz —
person identified in (a). B ATESISR L EZS o
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vi) EX(a)i)fTat e —& ALY
influence over the entity or is a member of the REXREAYENRZ
key management personnel of the entity (or of a EE (RZEXRZBATF)
parent of the entity). ZFEEBENRES
Close members of the family of a person are those —%AiZLiﬁEEE’\\‘JEE Bzt
family members who may be expected to influence, or ZEBRRHEPULEZALTRT
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the BATHECRERE °
entity.
(z) Segment reporting (2) ZEH®E
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment EENMREBREARS S D HIE
item reported in the financial statements, are identified Be&% EEYQF'J$E§/%1TBZ
from the financial information provided regularly to the EERECHREAEOAERE T
Group’s most senior executive management for the BomERRTFERRBZMEER o
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various operations.
Individually material operating segments are not BRBERzEESBTSAMBERS
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the EE’Jﬁ'ﬁA“I' HEBASFEBEUL
segments have similar economic characteristics and are B WEEARBEUZERRRE
similar in respect of the nature of products and services, ’|'_{§ﬁf CEBEFEARERN  oHEERD
the type or class of customers, the methods used to RERBAE  UREEREBEMEER
distribute the products or provide the services, and the 9|‘ BRIEERZEEDBMHAE L
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments MAZHERTFEE -

which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

2 EXBERIBEH

2 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Group is the operation of
hypermarket stores in the PRC. Turnover represents the net
amounts received and receivable for goods sold by the Group
to external customers, less returns, discounts and value added
taxes.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and there is no
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue.

All revenue from external customers are generated in the PRC
and all significant operating assets of the Group are located
in the PRC. Accordingly, the Group has a single operating and
reportable segment — operation of hypermarket stores in the

AEEBZFTEEBDIRPEEE R
me ERBEIAKEANMRBEFHES M
W EN SR FE W 2 FRRBRRE - HTHIRIBE
Bi o

FEECEEERSHL  BEET2ZX
ZIEAEEWZEBEB10% °

FBIRBEE z2WERERTERAEER
FEEXREEEENNTE - Bt » K&
EES-—EXBRBEDI -—RPEEE
REET

PRC.

3 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET 3 HMKBEBREMWA
INCOME/(LOSS) (B1]) 28
Consolidated
=Ee
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARBT T
Other revenue H AU &5
Leasing of store premises e 405,089 369,396
Other promotion and service income HtiERREWA 73,377 66,326
Interest income FMEW A 7,554 8,494
Government grants (note) BT By (M &) 17,038 19,607
503,058 463,823
Other net income/(loss) Hi A (FE) F58
Net foreign exchange gain BE 58 R F 58 35,719 5,532
Net gain/(loss) from store lease BUHESEE 2 ER,
cancellations (E18) 8 891 (21,014)
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBEEEZEBFE (3,239) (20,301)
33,371 (35,783)

Note: Government grants represent subsidies received from local

authorities.

MiEE : BT By B3 5 BT R M 20285 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3R 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z-=F+-A=+t-ALEEBRBERAN UARBTHEMN)
g 1=
4 REAER

4 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION
BREABEBIIXKRES

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging:
Consolidated

wh 3
2013 2012
—g-=f| =—E——%
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARBT T
(note 37)
(FfF5£37)
(a) Finance costs: (@ BERA:
Interest on borrowings wholly-repayable REFABREBEEZ
within five years: BRFAE
- Bank loans —RITEX 51,459 3,973
- Other loans —HMER 742 10,798
Interest on bank loan repayable after REFEEEZEZRIT
five years EXRFAE - 46,092
Finance charges on obligations under MEHEETzRE
finance leases (note 23) &M (MgaE23) 18,181 18,806
Interest on issuance of bank RITEH &AL
accepted bills EEFE 7,192 4,427
Total interest expense on financial FIRAARBEITTAERZ
liabilities not at fair value through THREBEZEFE
profit or loss 77,574 84,096
Loan arrangement and guarantee fees ERZHRERER 4,508 9,226
82,082 93,322
Consolidated
=y
2013 2012
—E—= —E--F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARB TR ARBTT
(b) Staff costs: by EE :
Salaries, wages and other benefits HFe IEREMEBR 815,697 828,042
Contributions to defined contribution iE%Eﬁi\%’\ﬂﬁ(ﬁ%U
retirement plans ZHFR 77,895 72,756
Termination benefits (note (i) ok % ?W; (B &E(G)) - 42,908
893,592 943,706
(c) Other items: (c) Hftwigg :
Depreciation of property, plant and IESN BERRE
equipment ZITE 164,625 191,236
Amortisation Tiﬁfé
- land lease premium -1 HEERE 6,294 6,293
- intangible assets -\ EE 13,153 13,152
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN I &
- audit service — &R 3,600 3,600
Operating lease charges EEHEER
- property rentals -MERE 519,891 503,248
Donations =EN 1,200 1,090
Cost of inventories (note 16) ﬁ EXZIK (HzE16) 9,088,212 8,914,309
Note: MEEE
(i)  Termination benefits for the year ended 31 December 2012 () BEZE—Z-—fF+=ZA= —1— BIEEEZ
represented the estimated cost to terminate the employment Aﬁ’]#ﬂj:ﬁ{”‘*}ﬂﬁiﬁ ——F+— /it
of certain staff pursuant to an organisation restructuring plan EZREEARE ,@glugmgﬂgﬁgz
approved in November 2012. FESTRAR o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

5 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 5 RGEBEBZXRZHEBH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

REEBEERZBIAT :

represents:

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a)

Consolidated

PN
2 =]
2013 2012
—EBE—-=F —E-—F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T AR T
Current tax - PRC B ER % 18 — P
Provision for the year FEEE 23,842 23,012
Deferred tax EERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary EAREBERELE
differences (note 25(b)) (Pt 5E25(b)) 51,959 44,133
Taxation expense HEER 75,801 67,145

Income tax is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
relevant jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Company and its subsidiaries did not generate any
assessable profits in Hong Kong during the year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law (“CIT law”) of
the PRC, subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are subject to PRC income tax at 25% on their assessable
profits as determined in accordance with the CIT law.

Further, under the CIT law, 10% withholding tax is levied
on the foreign investor in respect of dividend distributions
arising from a foreign invested enterprise’s profit earned
after 1 January 2008. As at 31 December 2013, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group had accumulated losses and
therefore no deferred tax liabilities were recognised in this
regard.

FREBiZ B R A E 2 RITHRET

5_0

HRAD TR EKEQBAHRRER
EEEARRBUER - MRFR KRG
BRNGBAFELRE -

REFSHENABERRHE 2 X
PINGER  AEEHRERFEERER
REBERRAHSELEETMAREH -

REPBDEREBE (TREMREH
ED) o AREBRFERL ZHEAF
Z BB R RIB B RAEBUES
25% o

LEoh - RIEEMEHET @ @EIMR
EERN_ZENF-A-—HEHEIE
RECFEFME 2GR - HBERR
BEDK10% 2 FENB - R=F—=4%F
TZA=Z+—RH  AEEZHEHNE
DEELERTEE - Bt - HEE
HRIELENERE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3R 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z-=F+-A=+t-ALEEBRBERAN UARBTHEMN)
REERBRZAEHR (&)

5 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 5
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(b) HEBERRETERNZBEABRTE

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

profit at applicable tax rates: ZHIRMT
Consolidated
=E
2013 2012
=2-= =F-=F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT ARET T
Loss before taxation BREBIAIE B (21,121) (324,494)
Notional tax on profit before LL25% 5t & 2 BR B AR R
taxation, calculated at 25% BRBEBE(ZE—ZF
(2012: 25%) (note) 25%) (Fi=E) (5,280) (81,124)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAIBRBE S 2 IS & 19,146 23,557
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBEEEHRETE 35,712 54,164
Tax effect of prior year’s recognised B, EEFECDHER
tax losses expired/reversed HMEEBE2HBEZE 39,411 56,778
Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised FRHEIFAREREREZRE
temporary differences utilised 2B E (13,652) -
Tax effect of temporary differences RERGRFERE
not recognised 2R e 464 13,770
Actual tax expense ERFHEEH 75,801 67,145
Note: The PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25% (2012: 25%) Mzt : ARAEEFTERDIHEE

is used as the operations of the Group are substantially
based in the PRC.

B25% (ZZ— 4% : 25%) 2 ¥
Bl hEMESHMETE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

6 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 6 EEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the Hong Kong BESEBEANTGHIBEEEEMELUT :
Companies Ordinance is as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2013: BE-_Z—=Ff+-BA=+—HLEE:
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme Share-based
fees in kind bonus contributions Sub-total payment Total
e BER NR% A
EShe FESTE  ME2RAL  BHREER Nt Efxf Bg
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARBTr ARETR AR%Tn ARETT ARETR ARETR
Executive directors YiTES
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont ~ HEA%LE - 4,746 - 12 4,758 - 4,758
Mr. Li Wen Hai TEEEE - 3,600 - - 3,600 - 3,600
Mr. Narong Chearavanont ELilbik - 5,094 - - 5,094 - 5,094
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed  RIEE %4 - 4,390 - 12 4,402 - 4,402
Mr. Michael Ross BXIELE - 3,844 - - 3,844 - 3,844
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BMEESE - 2,509 - 12 2,521 - 2,521
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont ARhEE - 747 - - 747 - 747
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont ~ #1#{- %4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong ~ Umroong Sanphasitvong % 4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul ~ Piyawat Titasattavorakul % & - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive BYFHTEES
directors
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnit & 191 - - - 191 - 191
Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara Songkitti Jaggabatara’t & 191 - - - 191 - 191
Mr. ltthaporn Subhawong Itthaporn Subhawong’t & 191 - - - 191 - 191
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech Prasobsook Boondech% 4 191 - - - 191 - 191
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo gEALE 191 - - - 191 - 191
Total a5 955 24,930 - 36 25,921 - 25,921
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3R 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RSAERBI UARBTREN)

6 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

6 EEME (&)

(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012: BE—_E——FE+-A=+—HIEEE":
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme Share-based
fees in kind bonus  contributions Sub-total payment Total
e 28R NIR% A
EShe  FBENE  MEZRAL  BHEER Nt ERXf a5
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETR  ARETr ARETR AR%Tn ARETT ARETR ARETR
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont HERLE - - - - - - -
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont ~ HEA%E - 4729 - 11 4,740 - 4,740
Mr. Narong Chearavanont L $is - 5,095 - - 5,095 - 5,095
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed REELE - 3,304 - 9 3,313 - 3,313
Mr. Michael Ross EXELE - 3,450 - - 3,450 - 3,450
Mr. Yang Xiaoping U - 2,526 - 11 2,537 - 2537
Mr. Li Wen Hai )i - 3,225 - - 3,225 - 3,025
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont B i - 762 - - 762 - 762
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont ~ Hi$8{= %4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong ~ Umroong Sanphasitvong % £ - - - - - - -
Mr. Robert Ping-Hsien Ho AT E%4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul ~ Piyawat Titasattavorakul %% - - - - - - -
Mr. Shih Hong-Mo BRREE - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUEHTES
directors
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnit’ & 195 - - - 195 - 195
Mr. Chokchai Kotikula Chokchai Kotikula% 4 49 - - - 49 - 49
Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara Songkitti Jaggabatara’t & 146 - - - 146 - 146
Mr. ltthapom Subhawong Itthaporn Subhawong’t 4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech Prasobsook Boondech%: & - - - - - - -
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo ik 195 - - - 195 - 195
Total a5 585 23,091 - 3 23,707 - 23,707
Note: Messrs. Dhanin Chearavanont and Robert Ping-Hsien Ho izt : R=F——-—FWABE—H FERLER

resigned as executive directors of the Company and Mr.
Chokchai Kotikula resigned as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 1 April 2012; Mr. Shih Hong-Mo
resigned as executive director of the Company on 31 December
2012; Messrs. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed and Songkitti Jaggabatara
were appointed as executive director and independent non-
executive director of the Company, respectively, on 1 April
2012; Messrs. Itthaporn Subhawong and Prasobsook Boondech
were appointed as independent non-executive directors of the
Company on 31 December 2012.

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, there
were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. In addition, no director waived
any emoluments for the years ended 31 December 2013 and

2012.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ot 25 5 25 .

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

7 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 7 REHFMES
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, five (2012: EhafuEsFMEEY AN (ZZ—=
five) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 6. FIHEMBAES  HMME 2 AHE6H
ﬁ o
8 LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 8 ARATARREMLERE
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders AR BRRELGFEBERBEARYE
of the Company includes a loss of RMB11,276,000 (2012: 11,276,000t 2 BEE(ZE—=F : AR
RMB40,613,000) which has been dealt with in the financial #£40,613,0007T) @ W EFF AKX QT Z B
statements of the Company (note 27(a)). BEmER (aF27() °
9 DIVIDENDS 9 KRE
No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended Bz B2—=5K-_ZT—-—_-_%+=AH4
31 December 2013 and 2012, nor has any dividend been =St+t—HLEZEER @MIERBENEZIK
proposed since the reporting date. BRE > ERE A EHMEERIREBEM
BRE o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3R 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RSAERBI UARBTREN)

10 LOSS PER SHARE 10 BREE
(a) Basic (a) EX
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the EREXREEZETIERTE

following data:

2013 2012
—B-=F =F—=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBT T

Loss for the year attributable to equity KATBRRELZFE

shareholders of the Company BB (96,837) (391,530)
The weighted average number of shares is calculated MEFHYROHEUTHERTE :

based on the following data:

2013 2012
—E-=5F —E-—F
Number of ordinary shares in issue R—A—RB#TZ
at 1 January EERRE 9,796,491,070 | 9,184,414,410
Effect of ordinary shares issued upon A—E—=F+—ANBEK
exercise of share options on —E-—FRHAZT+ANH
8 November 2013 and 29 May 2012 TEEREMBITEBER
pd-% - 90,365,029 362,141,376
Number of Series A convertible EBITZARYI AR
preference shares in issue BERKRE 1,518,807,075 | 1,518,807,075
Number of Series B convertible 2 81T 2BR S T
preference shares in issue BERRKE 3,897,110,334 | 3,897,110,334
Number of Series C convertible EEITZCRINTHRR
preference shares in issue BERKRE 3,672,489,764 | 3,673,765,764
Number of Series D convertible BT ZDR R
preference shares in issue BERBRH 2,211,382,609 | 2,211,382,609
Total HE 21,186,645,881 | 20,847,621,568
As set out in note 26(a), the holders of the convertible RIBMIEE26(a) » ATRBREERIFEA
preference shares are entitled to receive the same AEEEEBREE AREERRE
dividends as the holders of ordinary shares. ZFER o
(b) Diluted (b) #8H
The diluted loss per share for the years ended BE_Z—=FKR=-ZF—_F+=A
31 December 2013 and 2012 are the same as the basic =t+-HLEFE2EREESEES
loss per share as all potential ordinary shares are anti- REAREEER  RFEEEEBR
dilutive. YRR EEM -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

11 FIXED ASSETS

11 BEEE

(a) The Group (a) =&
Interests in
leasehold
land held for
Furniture, own use under
Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Stores under operating
Buildings improvements equipment vehicles fit out Sub-total leases Total
iR £8 EEREZAR
BT HERHB e RE  RERZER Mt IHEERG a5
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB'’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARBTR AR%Trn ARETr AR®Tr  ARETrn  ARET:n ARBTR
Cost: 2%
At 1 January 2012 F@Eg—Zfﬁ—ﬂ -8 234,340 1,518,685 466,337 28,033 41,911 2,289,206 201,042 2,490,248
Exchange adjustments ERHE - - - 4 - (4) - (4)
Additions wE - 37,349 46,692 5,381 191,947 281,369 281,369
Addition through acquisition  WEZFE - 74,038 9,371 ? 2,229 85,710 - 85,710
Transfer By - 83,986 45,253 323 (129,562) - - -
Disposals HeE - (14,485) (82,484) (3,291) (4,218) (104,478) - (104,478)
At31 December 2012 _ . RoBOSRIZAST-A 23430 1699473 485169 S0514 102807 2561808 01042 2752845
At 1 January 2013 R-Z-=%-5-8 234,340 1,699,473 485,169 30,514 102,307 2,551,803 201,042 2,752,845
Exchange adjustments EHAZ - - (70) (169) - (239) - (239)
Additions B - 8,207 49,751 752 165,143 213,853 - 213,853
Transfer @y - 151,470 65,139 1,196 (217,805) - - -
Disposals HE - 6,771) (63,734) (7,572) - (68,077) - (68,077)
At 31 December 2013 Bz 234,340 1,852,379 546,255 24,721 39,645 2,697,340 201,042 2,898,382
Accumulated depreciation R ERFERFE
and impairment losses:
At 1 January 2012 E@\_—lg—Zfﬁ—ﬂ - 65,988 444912 225,194 18,084 4,218 758,396 40,509 798,905
Exchange adjustments ERHE - - - (1 - (1) - 1)
Charge for the year ?EW@%’ 11,405 120,978 56,389 2,464 - 191,236 6,293 197,529
Impairment loss BERE - - - - 634 634 - 634
Written back on disposal & 2 B - (6,814) (67,127) (2,844) (4,218) (81,003) - (81,003)
At 31 December 2012 R-E-ZF+ZB=1-H 77,393 559,076 214,456 17,703 634 869,262 46,802 916,064
At 1 January 2013 M=%-Z%-5-H 77,393 559,076 214,456 17,703 634 869,262 46,802 916,064
Exchange adjustments EHAZ - - (68) (140) - (208) - (208)
Charge for the year EERER 11,407 102,350 49,173 1,695 - 164,625 6,294 170,919
Written back on disposal ~ HEZEI& - (2,59) (49,770) (6,773) - (59,139) - (59,139)
At 31 December 2013 WZE-ZF+-A=1-H 88,800 658,830 213,791 12,485 634 974,540 53,096 1,027,636
Net book value: REE:
At 31 December 2013 RZE-ZF+-fA=1-H 145,540 1,193,549 332,464 12,236 39,011 1,722,800 147,946 1,870,746
At 31 December 2012 R-B-Z#+-f=+-H 156,947 1,140,397 270,713 12,811 101,673 1,682,541 154,240 1,836,781
Note: MIsE :
Following a review of the actual utilisation of the Group’s property, BN ANEBIYE - BMERREZER
plant and equipment, the Group revised the estimated useful lives FHBERE  NEFR_-FT—=F—H—
of certain of its property, plant and equipment with effect from BREBEITEET2YE BEREEZ
1 January 2013 (see note 1(h)). T EAFH (RHEE1(h) °
The effect of these changes on the depreciation expense for the ZESFHITEBANREZEZ-_ZE—=
year ended 31 December 2013 and the expected effect for future +-BA=+—RHIEERFEHRHEERZE
periods is as follows: 2T

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=+t—-HILFE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017  Thereafter
ZE-ZF ZEZ-NF ZZ-RF ZZ-RE ZEZE-+tF a3
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTn AR¥TR AR®TR AR%ETR
Decrease/(increase) in WEERZ
depreciation expenses md (Ehm) 36,772 30,774 10,200 (10,078) (21,162) (46,506)

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&sETEH R



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z-=F+-A=+t-ALEEBRBERAN UARBTHEMN)
11 BEEEE (&)

11 FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

(b) The Company (b) A&2F
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
B £KE
R&® RE B
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2012 R-ZB-—Z—Hf-HA—H 2,294 4,090 6,384
Exchange adjustments EH R - (4) (4)
Additions hE - 1,479 1,479
Disposals HE 2) - )
At 31 December 2012 R-E——-—F+=HA=+—H 2,292 5,565 7,857
At 1 January 2013 A—E—=%—HA—H 2,292 5,565 7,857
Exchange adjustments fE AR (70) (169) (239)
Additions nE 68 - 68
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=%5+=-HA=+—H 2,290 5,396 7,686
Accumulated depreciation: ZEWE
At 1 January 2012 R=Z——-F—F—H 2,254 3,824 6,078
Exchange adjustments fE 38 - (1) (1
Charge for the year FERER 8 497 505
Written back on disposal &z B 2 - )
At 31 December 2012 R-ZZE-ZH+ZA=+—H 2,260 4,320 6,580
At 1 January 2013 A—E—=%—HA—H 2,260 4,320 6,580
Exchange adjustments (& 5, 7 (68) (140) (208)
Charge for the year FERER 35 580 615
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=%5+=-HA=+—H 2,227 4,760 6,987
Net book value: BREE :
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=%+=-B=+—H 63 636 699
At 31 December 2012 R=-ZE-——F+=ZA=+-—H 32 1,245 1,277
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-F-—=F+-A=1+—-HLEE(RIEHAN UAR¥THEMN)
11 FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 11 BEEEE(8&)

(c) MEZREEINMOT :

(c) The analysis of net book value of properties is as

follows:
The Group
AEH
2013 2012
=2-= =F-=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T AREEFT T
In the PRC RABER
— medium-term leases —FHEE 293,486 311,187
Representing: DHRIA
Buildings g3 145,540 156,947
Interests in leasehold land held for EEMREZBEHR
own use under operating leases THHEEES 147,946 154,240
293,486 311,187
(d) Fixed assets held under finance leases (d BEHESECEEEE
At 31 December 2013, the net book value of buildings held MN-ZE—=F+=ZA=+—H » &x&

under finance leases of the Group was RMB127,472,000
(2012: RMB135,127,000). The leases do not include
contingent rentals. The buildings are situated in the PRC
and held under medium term land use rights.

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ERmEHERF - REEAARKE
127,472,000t (ZB——F : AR
135,127,0007T) » WHEW T~ BFES
RS - BFURPE WP

{FE AEEE -
12 B EE

The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT R AREEF T
Cost: AR
At 1 January m—H—H 263,250 232,000
Addition from acquisition Ui B = 180 - 31,250
At 31 December BR+=ZA=+—H 263,250 263,250
Accumulated amortisation: T
At 1 January m—HB—H 44,070 30,918
Charge for the year FEANER 13,153 13,152
At 31 December BW+=-—A=+—H 57,223 44,070
Net book value: BRME B 206,027 219,180
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z-=F+-A=+t-ALEEBRBERAN UARBTHEMN)
12 B EE (&)

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
BREEEN_ZEZ\ER-ZE—ZFI

BHEBARMEE e BRERRER -
BBz AABERBIE=FhEMRERZ
HERSERER 2T EESLEBRE TR
BB QRRITHESE RN IR 2
REMEE BREEUESRERHTHE
EH (H10E30F T %) # -

Intangible assets relate to operating lease agreements
acquired in the acquisition of subsidiaries in 2008 and 2012.
The fair value on acquisition was determined based on a
valuation report prepared by independent third party valuers
and comparison of the market rental rates at the dates of
acquisition and the estimated present value of payments
due under the lease contracts entered into by the acquired
subsidiaries. The intangible assets are amortised using the
straight-line method over the remaining lease terms which vary
from 10 to 30 years.

RERZBHBERBERGRBEERAZ
[EEREREBRA] -

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “Distribution
and store operating costs” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

13 GOODWILL 13 HE
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E-—F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARBTT
Cost: R
At 1 January Wn—A—H 3,205,282 2,770,789
Addition 380 - 434,493
At 31 December BR+=—A=+—H 3,205,282 3,205,282
Accumulated impairment losses: 2 HEREE :
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—HR+=ZA=+—H (51,004) (51,004)
Carrying amount: BREE :
At 31 December KR+=ZA=+—H 3,154,278 3,154,278

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the carrying amount of
goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGUs”) as follows:

BERBZREEAEURENR

REB-—=FK-ZF-—Z-HF+ZA=1+—
A BEZRAEIREAEENT 2R
SELAEN((REEEEMNM]D :

2013 2012

=2-= =F-=F

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT R ARET R

East China Region ZERIE 3,026,873 3,026,873
South China Region EEE 124,007 124,007
North China Region FEiHE 3,398 3,398
3,154,278 3,154,278
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

13 GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the respective CGU/group of CGUs
is determined based on value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those relating
to the discount rate, forecast growth rates, and the expected
changes to selling prices and direct costs. These calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a one-year period, which are
extrapolated up to the following ten years by using estimated
growth rates of 0%-5% per annum (2012: 0% to 6% per
annum). The forecasts are extrapolated beyond ten years based
on estimated long-term average growth rates of 2% (2012: 3%)
per annum. The growth rates used do not exceed the long-
term average growth rates for the business in which the CGU
operates. The discount rate of 11% (2012: 11%) used reflects
the current market assessment of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGUs. Changes in gross margin,
selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market.

14 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

13 & & (&)

BRIREELEN HBREEELENT
WEHECTEERNGFHAEE FEFEA
BEZFEREZNDERZMEE - FERIE
REREEHEBERAZTERKNE - tE
FTE Fﬁﬁﬁzi‘ﬁ,ﬁﬁfﬁﬁumééﬁéa}%”ﬁﬂg
Ez—FHUKEE  WABFORE
5% (ZF——_F : BF0%E6%) 2 &5
BREMERZEARRTF - BB TFHE
BDERGESTEF2% (2T ——5F :3%)
WREFIEREMER - FIRANER
ZATHBHRSEEENMETENER
BB RE - BBRER 11 (ZF—=
F 1% RRBEBEMSTARSELES
Nz cEFHRERRESEEENESEZRE
B o EF %ﬁiﬁiﬁ&ﬁizﬁz FEENB
FEHRFEHGR 2T HHE -

14 B AR ER

The Company

¥
2013 2012
—E—= —E—-CF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT AREBF T
Unlisted shares/capital contributions, at cost 3EEMRRH BRAEE 2 KA 2,045,214 2,109,226
Add: Amounts due from subsidiaries hn o REUR B B A B FRIE 1,618,244 1,550,998
Less: Impairment losses B OREEE (222,342) (229,303)
3,441,116 3,430,921
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest FEWMBATRREHLHEKE FWERE

bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.

B & ZE R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

HE-F-=FT-A=t-ALFE(R2AHBN  UARMTBER)
14 B A Az (F)

14 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

The following list contains only the particulars of the Group’s
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The Group’s effective interest in the
entities below are all held by subsidiaries of the Company. The

UTIREBETELEREEER - BE
FREZHBRIRER - AEERUT &
EeBRER2MAAR DR ZME R AR
B UTREIBRPER L 2AREE

entities below are all companies established in the PRC with AH] e
limited liability.
Group’s
Name of companies Registered and paid up capital effective interest
AREE ERREHRA KEBZENER
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F “E--f ZEBE-Zf CZEBE--F
% %
TRGNETEHRTERLA USD25,000,000% 7t USD25,000,000% 7t 100 100
Beijing Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (K1)
BARZNETEHBTERAF RMBA K%19,000,000c0  RMBAK®2,000,0007 100 100
Xian Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1, 2) (Fif&E1 ~ 2)
BN NEREHETERLT USD5,000,000%7%,/  RMBAR#2,000,0007 100 100
Zhengzhou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. USD4,922,924% Tt
(note 1, 2) (Fif&¥1 - 2)
EESNEREHRTERAR USD6,500,000% 7t USD6,500,000% 7T 100 100
Qingdao Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (KtzE1)
ENZNETEHBTERAA USD48,000,000% 7 USD48,000,000% 7t 100 100
Guangzhou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (K &E1)
WEZNETEHEBTERAA USD12,000,000% 7t USD12,000,000% 7t 100 100
Shantou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 3) (ffEE3)
BUTESEERBREERERAR RMBA E#3,000,0000  RMBA R #3,000,0007 100 100
Foshan Nanhai Hua Nan Tong Trading (note 2) (K&E2)
Development Co., Ltd.
EREFBEHERRERAA RMBA K #29,500,000c RMBA K#29,500,0007 100 100
Guangdong Hua Nan Tong Trading (note 2) (i&E2)
Development Co., Ltd.
TRGNEREHEBTERLF USD132,200,000% 7t USD132,200,000% 7t 100 100
Shanghai Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (fif&E1)
EERBEBNHLERAR RMBA K#25,000,0000  RMBAK™5,000,0007 100 100
Shanghai Changfa Shopping Centre Co., Ltd. (note 1, 2) (1~ 2)
TERERTERAT RMB A E #10,000,0007¢ RMBA [ #500,0007 100 100
Shanghai Yilian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 2, 4) (fifzt2 ~ 4)
LEREBTERAR RMBA K #60,000,000T RMBA K #60,000,0007T 100 100
Shanghai Cailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (K z%4)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z-=S+-A=+-HEFEBRSEHABHN AARBTHEN)

14 B FER (&)

(Continued)
Group’s
Name of companies Registered and paid up capital effective interest
NGES TMEEHRER KEFzENER
2013 2012 2013 2012
—%-=F ~%--F -%-=f C-%-CF
% %
TERERTERAT RMBA K #13,500,0007 RMBA & #500,0007 100 100
Shanghai Xinlian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1, 2) (f&E1~ 2)
ERBERETERLH RMB A [ #500,0007 RMBA E#500,0007 100 100
Nantong Tonglian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (K z%4)
BUREBMAERLH RMBA E#10,000,000c RMBA E 10,000,000 100 100
Kunshan Tailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (Ki&t4)
LEEERTERLE RMB A E #13,500,0007 RMBA K #500,0007c 100 100
Shanghai Yalian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1, 2) (H&E1 > 2)
TEEERTERAT RMBA K #13,500,0007 RMBA & #500,0007 100 100
Shanghai Jialian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1, 2) (&1 2)
BT NEBREBEABRAF RMBA 8,949,000  RMBA R#8,949,0007 100 100
Foshan C.P. Lotus Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (note 4, 5) (&4~ 5)
NEBRCEEEERAT USD16,800,000% 7t USD16,800,000% 7t 100 100
C.P. Lotus Corporate Management Co., Ltd. (note 1, 5) (fif&1 -+ 5)
LEERMRERAE RMBA K#1,000,000t  RMBA K#1,000,0007 100 100
Shanghai Lianyuan Logistics Co., Ltd. (note 2, 5) (fi#z£2+ 5)
TENEEZERRERAT RMBA E#10,000,000t RMBA E#10,000,0007 80 80
Shanghai CP Xi Duo Wu Foods Co., Ltd. (note 3, 5) (&3 5)
AREEESERAH RMB A K #600,0007 RMBA E#600,0007 100 100
Xian Delian Trading Co., Ltd. (note 2, 5) (fi{&F2+ 5)
EHEEEEENERAA RMBA £ 14,500,000 RMBA E#14,500,0007 100 100
Wuxi Ailian Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (F&E1)
EREERTARAF RMBA R 14,500,000 RMBA R #14,500,0007C 100 100
Hefei Ailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1) (K1)
RONEBTERLF RMBA R #14,500,000t RMBA R#14,500,0007C 100 100
Changsha Chulian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1) (B &E1)
BNEEEERTERLT RMB A & #6,000,000 7 - 100 -

Xuzhou Yalian Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd.

(note 4, 6) (K15¥4 ~ 6)
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14 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes:

M
@

All are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.

The equity interest is held by individual nominees on behalf of
the Company. These companies are domestic enterprises in the
PRC legally owned by PRC nationals. Pursuant to the various
agreements in place between the Group and the nominees, the
Group operates the hypermarkets and the other business owned
by the nominee companies and in return is entitled to all the profit
or loss from the operation of the nominee companies. As the
Group bears the risks and rewards of its operation of the nominee
companies, the directors of the Company, after taking legal
advice, consider that the Group has effective control over these
enterprises. Therefore the financial results and positions of these
enterprises have been consolidated into the Group since their
respective dates of establishment.

In 2013, the Group acquired all the equity interest in Shanghai
Yilian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Yilian”), Shanghai
Changfa Shopping Centre Co., Ltd., Shanghai Xinlian Supermarket
Co., Ltd., Shanghai Yalian Supermarket Co., Ltd., Shanghai Jialian
Supermarket Co., Ltd., Xian Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co.,
Ltd. and Zhengzhou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. from
the original individual nominees. As a result, Shanghai Yilian was
converted into a domestic enterprise in the PRC, and the other
entities were converted into wholly-foreign-owned enterprises in
the PRC.

In addition, the Group has also entered into equity transfer
agreements with the individual nominee equity holders of Foshan
Nanhai Hua Nan Tong Trading Development Co., Ltd. and
Guangdong Hua Nan Tong Trading Development Co., Ltd. to
acquire all the equity interest in these two entities. The equity
transfer of these two entities is expected to be completed in early
2014.

These are sino-foreign joint ventures established in the PRC.
These are domestic enterprises in the PRC.

C.P. Lotus Corporate Management Co., Ltd. is engaged in the
provision of management services to subsidiaries within the
Group. Shanghai Lianyuan Logistics Co., Ltd. and Foshan C.P.
Lotus Management Consulting Co., Ltd. are engaged in the
provision of logistic services. Shanghai CP Xi Duo Wu Foods
Co., Ltd. and Xian Delian Trading Co., Ltd. are engaged in the
provision of sourcing products. All other companies listed above
are involved in the operation of hypermarket stores in the PRC.

This is a domestic enterprise established in the PRC by Wuxi
Ailian Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. in 2013.
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15 PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS FOR 15 X EESE
PREMISES
The Group
AEME
2013 2012
=2-= =F-=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARET T
At 1 January Hn—A—H 44,618 17,145
Additions 0 4,001 38,890
Charged to profit or loss for the year FERNIEZZEEBS (7,026) (11,417)
At 31 December R+ZHA=+—H 41,593 44,618
Represented by: pa:l P
Non-current portion Ik BN HR 2B 17 30,159 35,674
Current portion B ER 2R 1 11,434 8,944
41,593 44,618

These amounts represent prepaid rentals for hypermarket

stores operated by the Group.

16 INVENTORIES

All inventories as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012
are finished goods merchandise. The analysis of the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense is as follows:

WEHFEDAEBKE KRB BT 2 FE(THE
- &

16 &
ER-E—=f(+ZA=+—-HKZ=Z

—ZH+Z A=+ -HZFEYRHRM
Ao BABXHZEFEBBEINAOT -

The Group
AEE
2013 2012
=2-= =F-=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBT T

Carrying amount of inventories sold EHFEZREE 9,070,092 8,900,331
Write-down of inventories FEZRE 18,120 13,978
9,088,212 8,914,309

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&sETEH R
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-F-—=F+-A=1t-HBLEE(RIZEHAN UAR¥THEM)
17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 EERHMWEWRE

The Group The Company
AEE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012

—E-ZF | ZE-ZF | ZBE-Z=ZF | ZEB—Z=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR

Trade receivables, other EEREWRIE - HAt

receivables and deposits FEWFERT & 269,022 223,789 1,594 2,664

Amounts due from related FEUAERE ¥ FE
companies (note 34(b)) (Pt 5E34(b)) 583,439 624,155 4,471 5
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUW I B A TR E - - 8,020 7,767
852,461 847,944 14,085 10,436

All of the trade and other receivables apart from rental MRIEERES ARM66,739,000T (=&

deposits of the Group amounting to RMB66,739,000 (2012: —— % : AK¥56,136,0007T) > FTHE

RMB56,136,000) are expected to be recovered within one year. 4(%52%@&%&@4&%&15%&%5@—&
AdgE o

REEEEREMEYGIRARESER
WskE (HRRRIRAR 2 B E) - RIS R
RIBFBREHZREDTAT :

Included in the Group’s trade and other receivables are trade
debtors (net of allowance for bad and doubtful debts) with the
following ageing analysis, based on invoice date, as of the end
of the reporting period:

The Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E—= —E—-F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARET T ARBT T

Current BOHA 30,419 23,731
1 to 30 days overdue BmEH—Z=1H 2,311 4,708

31 to 60 days overdue BE=+—HZATH 1,665 1,839
61 to 90 days overdue BHAT—HENALTH 1,426 1,805
Over 90 days BHEBEATH 530 337

36,351 32,420

The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 29(a). The directors
consider no impairment provision is required in respect of
the above trade debtors which are overdue as they relate to
counterparties that have a good track record with the Group.

Annual Report 2013 %3k
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

18 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

At 31 December 2013, RMB79,812,000 (2012: RMB185,206,000)
of the Group’s bank deposits were pledged to banks as
guarantees for the issuance of bank accepted bills for

payments to suppliers.

18 CHEARITERK

In addition, at 31 December 2013, RMB24,649,000 (2012:
RMB29,625,000) of the Group’s bank deposits were pledged
to banks for the issuance of letters of guarantee to landlords of

certain subsidiaries.

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H  A&E£EZ
RITERARYET79,812,000T (=& —=
£ AR%185,206,0007T) C K FRIT
EABEERNRMBEHBTRAAEEZ 2
BR -

o RZEBE-=%F+ZA=+—H"' A
R#24,649,000t (ZE—ZF : AR¥
29,625,0007T) 2 A EERITFEREIKA
FHRITUAETHELARN ZEREHIER

BB e

19 RERRAEEH

The Group The Company
rEE AR
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —BE-—F | ZB—= B
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTRT | ARETT
Cash at bank and in hand BRITHEERRS 266,156 415,974 14,671 30,511

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group and of the Company
amounting to RMB20,928,000 (2012: RMB18,747,000) and
RMB4,000 (2012: RMB4,000) respectively are non-interest

bearing.

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

AEBRARADEMECZREERREE
DAl B AR %20,928,000t (Z & —=
F: AR%18,747,0007t) & A E#4,000
T(ZE—Z—F . AK¥4,0007T) °

0 EERHEMENRIE

The Group The Company
rEH AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= —E-_F —EB-= —E-_F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR| AR®TR
Notes payable FEE B 210,693 360,327 - -
Creditors and accrued charges B HERENER 3,455,480 3,240,440 1,258 1,197
Amounts due to related EHEBLERE

companies (note 34(b)) (P 5E34(b)) 436,602 334,858 - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS M B A B FRIE - - 421,461 402,248
4,102,775 3,935,625 422,719 403,445

All of the trade and other payables apart from amounts due to

subsidiaries are expected to be settled within one year.

The above balances with related parties are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

BREEMNMERRREN  MAEERHEAM
NRERAR - FREE -

LLEFrAEMERA T AR o BRI BEIR
B TIHERRERERE -

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&sETEH R
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BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RSAERBI UARBTREN)

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(Continued)

20 EE R H MR FOR (F)

Included in the Group’s trade and other payables are trade NEBZEENHMENTIBERIEEER
creditors and notes payable of RMB2,674,123,000 (2012: NHEREMEE AR®2,674,123,000
RMB2,651,635,000) with the following ageing analysis as at the T (ZZF—-—%F: AK®¥2,651,635,000
reporting date: 7T RBEBRZRESTAOT ¢
The Group
£ EE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR TR ARBT T
Uninvoiced purchases REARBE 2R 1,007,047 920,124
Within 30 days of invoice date BREHZ=1THR 1,592,713 1,668,810
31 to 60 days after invoice date BERAB=T—
ZXtH 64,217 51,351
61 to 90 days after invoice date BEHEBART—
Zh+H 6,426 1,562
More than 90 days after BEREBESA
invoice date h+AH 3,720 9,788
2,674,123 2,651,635
21 BANK LOANS 21 BITE
As at 31 December 2013, the bank loans were repayable as N-ZEBE—=%+Z"H=+—H xX&EFZ
follows: EEZBITEROT :
The Group The Company
&M AR
2013 2012 2013 2012
ZE-=HF | ZE-ZF | ZB-=F | ZE—Z=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR| ARBTR
Within 1 year —FR 70,906 1,258,192 10,303 177,086
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREWMER 121,062 - 17,171 -
After 2 years but within 5 years WEEZEBERAFER 978,254 - 137,369 -
1,099,316 - 154,540 -
1,170,222 1,258,192 164,843 177,086
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-F-—=F+-A=1+—-HLEE(RIEHAN UAR¥THEMN)
21 BANK LOANS (Continued) 21 RITER (&)

R-B-=F+=A=t+—F ~EEZ
RITHRBIERBRIOT :

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s bank loans are secured/
guaranteed as follows:

The Group The Company
rEH AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
=2-= —E-"F | ZB-=F| ZF--F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR | ARBTRT | ARBTRT | ARETT
Secured bank loans BIEARITER
- Secured by assets held - UREEZEE

by the Group K 7 1,170,222 1,258,192 164,843 177,086

At 31 December 2013, the Group has drawn down
floating rate bank loans of USD191,780,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,170,222,000) (2012: USD200,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,258,192,000)), bearing interest at three-month London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 3.25% per annum, which
are secured by the share capital of certain of its subsidiaries.
These bank loans were drawn from term loan facilities which
expire on 31 December 2018 with instalment repayments
scheduled during their terms. The bank loans were classified
as current liabilities as at 31 December 2012 as the Company
breached certain earnings and solvency related loan covenants
as at that date. The Company subsequently obtained a waiver
from the banks in respect of the breach as at 31 December
2012.

RZE-=F+-A=+-—-8 'FX&EH
BRBUT 8 F Z 4R 1T E 191,780,000
7t (HHE R AR®1,170,222,000T) (=&
— — 4 :200,000,000E% T (HERARE
1,258,192,0007t)) @ ¥ =18 B fm HIR 1T
BEFE (RIBTEEFRE]D) MEF
RI25%FTE  LEBETEMB AR ZBRA
BRI - LERITERUTHETMEF
XAMEEN R=FE-NF+=ZA=+—8
BH > WRABRZRSRERES D HEE -
RZEBE-ZF+=ZA=+—H  HERT
EFCERERPEARDERG  EHAE
FETABREMNED 2BEERZY -
AABEEACRER=-ZE—=—F+=4
§Eg+— BARETHEZOMEBRTZH

22 OTHER LOANS

22 HttE X

The Group The Company
rEE ARAE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —E-—F | ZEB—= —E-—F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR| AR TR
Loans from third parties E=ZHZER
(note (i) (B EE()) 40,822 55,100 - -
Loans from related companies HELECEX
(note (ii) (B =E (i) - 97,000 - -
Amounts due to a subsidiary B—RMWEBAF
(note (iii)) 2 FRIE (B &£ (iii)) - - 15,263 15,740
40,822 152,100 15,263 15,740

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&sETEH R
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BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RSAERBI UARBTREN)

22 OTHER LOANS (Continued) HER (&)

Notes: B =E

()  The loans from third parties are unsecured and bear interest at () MBLFE=F2ERLEIKHF R=18
three-month LIBOR plus 1.5% per annum (2012: 1.81% to 5.90% BRBRITRAEREMNERNE15% (=8
per annum). —ZF FERE1.81%FE5.90%) 5T 8 °

(i) As at 31 December 2012, the Group had drawn down loans from (i) R=F——F+=-A=+—H xKEE
entities related to the Group’s ultimate holding company, which ERGAERATGZHBLEECER 13
are unsecured and bear fixed interest at 7.393% per annum. H|IK - WIREEFFIZR7.393%1 8 o It
These loans were settled or assigned to other related entities gggxz;mg;g@gm—g—zmwe%
at their outstanding amount during 2013. These transactions BHEETHMAERCE HEXZEM
constitute connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of FTTRAFUVAEEEZETZBEERS A
the Listing Rules, however, they are exempt from the disclosure M RETHRIFUAZTTERERE -

requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(iiiy RMB14,105,000 (2012: RMB14,546,000) of the amounts due to a
subsidiary bear interest at one-year LIBOR plus 2% per annum.
The remaining amounts are non-interest bearing. The amounts due
to a subsidiary have no fixed terms of repayment.

(i B — XM BRAAZKE
14105000m(_.;—f:$:
14,546,0007T) I — FMBERITRIZEIRE
EF|ZO%IE o 4T 2 2 Iﬁfmﬁfh fE
T—FHBLARAZREEETERS -

23 MEHEST

R-ZB-—=%+ZA=+—-0 FA&EZ
EABMEHRESEENT :

o

ogl]]}

>>-
o £
WERF

23 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

At 31 December 2013, the Group had obligations under finance
leases repayable as follows:

The Group
#2%
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
Present Present
value of the Total | value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHEE REAE REHEE REHEE
FREE TR FTRBEE TR 5
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR AR%®Tn| ARBTR AR®TT
Within 1 year —FR 7,783 25,261 6,677 24,858
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMER 8,968 25,620 7,783 25,261
After 2 years but within 5 years WEEEBERAFER 34,148 78,059 30,207 77,274
After 5 years EF#E 129,531 176,610 142,440 203,015
172,647 280,289 180,430 305,550
180,430 305,550 187,107 330,408
Less: Total future interest B RRFE
expenses B 458 (125,120) (143,301)
Present value of lease obligations HESF 2 HRE 180,430 187,107
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BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

24 PROVISIONS 24 B

Provisions have been made for the directors’ best estimate §1fﬁﬁ§$¥ﬁﬁ§§$$ﬁifﬁﬁf¥ﬁgﬁ
of the expected costs associated with the cancellation by the %}ﬁziﬁi?ﬁkmgfﬁfﬁiﬂ@ ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
Group of certain new store projects and termination benefits Z%g%g%m?%%iﬁgwwﬁﬁa

resulting from the organisation restructuring plan referred to in . )

note 4(b). Provisions are summarised as follows:
The Group
AEE

Lease Termination
cancellation benefit Total
BUHTES S SHOKLWHE wmaE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBF T ARBF T
At 1 January 2012 R=Z——F—HF—H 267 - 267
Provisions incurred BEoEL 21,014 42,908 63,922
Provisions utilised EFRAzEE (6,628) (1,230) (7,858)
At 31 December 2012 R=Z-—=-—F+=A=+—H 14,653 41,678 56,331
At 1 January 2013 R-ZZE—=%—H—H 14,653 41,678 56,331
Provisions incurred BREEE 180 - 180
Provisions utilised EFERzEE (12,932) (41,678) (54,610)
Provisions reversed 2 e 2 B E (1,071) - (1,071)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZZ-—Z=Z5+=ZA=+—H 830 - 830

The provision balance at 31 December 2013 is expected to be

utilised within one year.

25 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the statement of financial position

REZB-—=5+Z"A=+—-HzBEHE
R —FAEM -

25 B BMRABRAZFAER

(@) BABRRBERAZBENBIRTS

represents:
The Group The Company
rEE YN
2013 2012 2013 2012
ZER-ZF | ZBE-ZF | ZB-Z=ZF | ZEB—Z=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR| AR TR
Balance at the beginning FEHIEH
of the year 17,214 18,899 - -
Provision for PRC income FEANPEFREHR
tax for the year B 23,842 23,012 - -
PRC income tax paid ERMzFPEREH (22,047) (24,697) - -
Income tax payables at EHmEH2
the end of the year FEHRGEH 19,009 17,214 - -

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&sETEH R
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25 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 25 BRRBRAZAES
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued) (£8)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised - b)) ERAZELHEEERARG -
the Group AEE
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RERCEINGESTBRRRE 2
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial EEREBEEE (BB 2BREBH
position and the movements during the year are as follows: REEZNT .
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own use
Property, under
plantand  operating Intangible
Tax losses  equipment leases assets Others Total
nE. EEREZ
BE BRti
REKE PET ] HEEH BVEE Hity g

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARRTR ARETR ARET:R

Deferred tax arising from: ~ BEHREELE :

At 1 January 2012 R=E-—%-F-H 118,873 7313 (13,129) (50,271) 11,695 74,481

Acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WEHEAF 5,895 (601) - (7,813) (748) (3,267)
Credited/(charged) to A/ (BI%) EER

profit or loss (note 5(a)) (M3F5(a)) (53,914) (69) 943 3,289 5,618 (44,133)

At 31 December 2012 W=E-Z£+-B=+-H 70,854 6,643 (12,186) (54,795) 16,565 27,081
Credited/(charged) to A/ (Gl%) 2B H

profit or loss (note 5(a)) (MizE5(a)) (52,909) (424) 942 3,288 (2,856) (51,959)

At 31 December 2013 RZB-=Z8+ZA=+-H 17,945 6,219 (11,244) (51,507) 13,709 (24,878)

An analysis of the net deferred tax asset and liability is set ELES EEEREESE oM

out as follows: ™

2013 2012

—E-=F —E—-—F

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR¥T AR T

Net deferred tax assets EERIBEE T 22,934 65,112

Net deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE T (47,812) (38,031)

(24,878) 27,081
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25 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(c)

Deferred tax assets not recognised - the Group

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of the items below as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which these items can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities.

25 HMRRBERAZAER
(%)

(c)

AR EEREEE - AEE

LR R EERIBEEER &
KIER - AR EESHREE A
ERER DT BRNMEHE LMEER R
RIERB 2R o

2013 2012

—E—-=F —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR T AREEFT T

Tax losses BiEEE 871,541 882,541
Deductible temporary differences K 2 HEFEEE 114,217 166,968
985,758 1,049,509

Excluding the tax losses of the Company which do not
expire, the tax losses can be carried forward up to five
years from the year in which the loss originated, and will
expire in the following years:

BRAQE 2 REBBRRIEIHMAIN
RABEIRNBREELEFER ZUER
EFERER > XRTHFHEE :

2013 2012

=2-= =F-=F

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR T AREEFT T

2013 —E-=F - 223,114
2014 —E—E 120,263 116,396
2015 —E-A1EF 208,511 182,723
2016 —E—-XREF 153,035 115,485
2017 —ZE—+tHF 219,572 216,654
2018 —E-N\F 142,846 -
844,227 854,372

(d) Deferred tax assets not recognised - the Company (d RERAZEEHREEE-XLQT
At 31 December 2013, the Company has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of accumulated tax losses
of RMB27,314,000 (2012: RMB28,169,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available. The tax losses do
not expire under current tax legislation.

RZE-—=FE+ZA=+—-H 'K
RAMABRZEFHEBEEAR
07 314,000 (ZE—Z—F : AR
#528,169,00070) Z A IELE R 1B E
B ETATEESTARKEER
B ok R FE SR 2 5% F o 12 30 4T Bt 4l
T hERBEEELEREHA -
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26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 B A
(a) Authorised and issued share capital (a) EEREEITRA
2013 and 2012
—E-=FR-E-—C=F
No. of shares
i 2
( 000) HK$’ 000
(+) FET
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares at par value SRR MEE0.028 T
of HK$0.02 each ZEBR 34,000,000 680,000
Series A convertible preference shares BREE0.02/8 T2
at par value of HK$0.02 each ARG AR IR E LR 2,000,000 40,000
Series B convertible preference shares BREEC.02ETZ
at par value of HK$0.02 each BRI IRE LR 4,000,000 80,000
Series C convertible preference shares SREE0.02/8 T2
at par value of HK$0.02 each CRITHBELR 4,500,000 90,000
Series D convertible preference shares BREE0.02/B T2
at par value of HK$0.02 each DRI R E LR 2,500,000 50,000
2013 2012
—B-=F —EB--F
No. of shares No. of shares
i & PR &
(’000) RMB’ 000 ('000) RMB’ 000
() AR¥T R (F) ARET R
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
Ordinary shares ZBER
At 1 January R—B—H 9,796,491 195,841 9,184,414 185,865
Shares issued under share RERESET
option scheme BITZRH 610,801 9,669 610,801 9,955
Conversion % 980 16 1,276 21
At 31 December R+=R=t—-H 10,408,272 205,526 9,796,491 195,841
Convertible preference shares A2} E % Bk
At 1 January R—A—H 11,299,790 190,583 9,089,683 154,749
Issue during the year FRET - - 2,211,383 35,855
Conversion i (980) (16) (1,276) (21)
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H 11,298,810 190,567 11,299,790 190,583
Total at 31 December R+=ZB=+-H
ZIBEE 21,707,082 396,093 21,096,281 386,424
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive EIEPRIEA A SR E R SRR B
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to THEARAARATIREAS =SSR
one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. —RERE . IEZEREANDTZF
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the HEESHRZE M -

Company’s residual assets.
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26 |7 ()

26 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(@) Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

At 31 December 2013, the total convertible preference
shares in issue include 1,518,807,075 (2012: 1,518,807,075)
Series A convertible preference shares, 3,897,110,334
(2012: 3,897,110,334) Series B convertible preference
shares, 3,671,509,764 (2012: 3,672,489,764) Series C
convertible preference shares and 2,211,382,609 (2012:
2,211,382,609) Series D convertible preference shares,
respectively.

All the convertible preference shares are non-voting
shares. The holders of these shares are entitled to receive
the same dividends as the holders of ordinary shares. In
addition, the holders of these shares have the right to
convert any preference share into the Company’s ordinary
shares at any time at the conversion price at the rate of 1
to 1 each subject to the minimum public float requirement
as set out under the Listing Rules being maintained.
Adjustments to the conversion price are only made upon
dilutive and other events which are related to the Company
issuing new shares or convertible debts.

On 8 November 2013, 610,800,660 ordinary shares of
par value of HK$0.02 each were issued at a price of
HK$0.1865 per share (equivalent to RMBO0.1476 per
share) to settle all the outstanding options granted
on 10 November 2003. Net proceeds from the shares
issued amounted to HK$113,914,000 (equivalent to
RMB90,163,000) out of which HK$12,216,000 (equivalent
to RMB9,669,000) and HK$101,698,000 (equivalent to
RMB80,494,000) were recorded in share capital and share
premium, respectively.

During 2013, 980,000 (2012: 1,276,000) Series C
convertible preference shares were converted to the same
number of ordinary shares.

On 1 January 2012, 2,211,382,609 Series D convertible
preference shares of par value of HK$0.02 each were
issued as consideration for the acquisition of subsidiaries.
The fair value of the shares issued amounted to
HK$529,073,000 (equivalent to RMB428,920,000) out of
which HK$44,228,000 (equivalent to RMB35,855,000) and
HK$484,845,000 (equivalent to RMB393,065,000) were
recorded in share capital and share premium, respectively.

On 29 May 2012, 610,800,660 ordinary shares of par value
of HK$0.02 each were issued at a price of HK$0.0687
per share (equivalent to RMBO0.0560 per share) to settle
all the outstanding options granted on 6 June 2002.
Net proceeds from the shares issued amounted to
HK$41,962,000 (equivalent to RMB34,196,000) out of
which HK$12,216,000 (equivalent to RMB9,955,000) and
HK$29,746,000 (equivalent to RMB24,241,000) were
recorded in share capital and share premium, respectively.

(a)

EERSBITRA (B)

m:ﬁ—3$+ A=
AzBBETHE Bﬂ

£4%1,518,807,075/& (
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RSAERBI UARBTREN)

26 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 26 R4 (&)
(b) Terms and numbers of unexpired and unexercised (b) RBEBRBERKRTEEREZMK
share options at reporting date FREE
Details of the unexpired and unexercised share options at RIBE BRI RRITEEIRE 25
the reporting date are set out in note 28(a) to the financial 15 » BHI R B 75 3R &5 MY sE28(a) ©
statements.
27 RESERVES 27 f#E
(a) The Company (a) &A2F
Share
Share option Exchange Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
RAEE BRERE B R REEF am

(Note (c)) (Note (c)) (Note (c)) (Note (b))

(MEE(c)) (M3E(c)) (B3E(c)) (B3E(b))

RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARET:R

At 1 January 2012 RZE-Z%-F-H 1,339,132 53,841 (220,471) 943,352 2,115,854
Loss for the year FEEHB - - - (40,613) (40,613)
Other comprehensive income E2EBA - - 434 - 434

Total comprehensive income EEZHANALE

for the year - - 434 (40,613) (40,179)
Issue of Series D convertible BIDRYTRKRE LR

preference shares (note 26(a)) (F$F26(a)) 393,065 - - - 393,065
Shares issued upon exercise of  {TEBEREMETRA

share options (note 26(a)) (HtzE26(a)) 24,241 - - - 24,241
At 31 December 2012 RZB-ZE+ZA=+—-H 1,756,438 53,841 (220,037) 902,739 2,492,981
At 1 January 2013 R-Z-=E-f—-AH 1,756,438 53,841 (220,037) 902,739 2,492,981
Loss for the year EEHB - - - (11,276) (11,276)
Other comprehensive income Hit2EBA - - (87,821) - (87,821)
Total comprehensive income EE2ERALE

for the year - - (87,821) (11,276) (99,097)
Shares issued upon exercise of ~ {TEBREMETRE

share options (note 26(a)) (FtzE26(a)) 80,494 - - - 80,494
At 31 December 2013 RZZE-Z5+-A=t-H 1,836,932 53,841 (307,858) 891,463 2,474,378
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

27 RESERVES (Continued) 27 f#f (&)
(b) Distributability of reserves (b) fREEZD KM
In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, REBEARXATZAKZEME » 2R
distributions shall be payable out of the profits of the RERNT ZBFREE o \\:i—\zﬁ
Company. At 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of +ZB=+—8 ARQFEBF2H
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders {#ﬁ;ﬁ%ﬂ“%Zﬁ%ﬁ%QG 905,000
of the Company was HK$968,905,000 (equivalent to ,%75($E£EAAEM891 463 0007T)
RMB891,463,000) (2012: HK$983,037,000 (equivalent to (==& — 1 : 983,037, 000/%7_13 (48
RMB902,739,000)). gmkﬁﬁﬁgoz 739,0007T))
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (c) REEZ2HEEREN
()  Share premium (i) Bz E
The application of the share premium account is B nERERAE =2 BB SR
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman S PPA/NCI7
Islands.
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, REFEFREZLQTE  BRMDE
share premium is distributable to the shareholders (E=EIN) ,JK%ZK’D\EZHii MR
of the Company provided that immediately following BEEZEDRKRE®Z  AQAE
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be BRENEEREEEEMEEZ
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay FIEREIE -
off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
(i)  Revaluation reserve (i) EEFEE
The revaluation reserve represents the difference BEFEEDIREEARANALRE
between the Group’s share of the fair value of the Brz—ZHMBARER  A&EH
associate’s net assets and the Group’s interest RBEARE2EEFRIN
in associate at the date the associate became a BHEAEENRZEE AR 2 &R
subsidiary of the Group. =5 o
(i) Share option reserve (i) FERIEFE
The share option reserve represents the fair value 58 IR A {488 T AR BB BT 1 () (i) BR
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised MUB M ABERIF 2T
share options granted to employees of the Company % &%Z!KAE{EEZEB%%EEE
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy STRITEBRESE 22 RES
adopted for share-based payments in note 1(r)(ii). BR o
(iv) Exchange reserve (iv) EZFE
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange EARESSMERREPENU
differences arising from the translation of the financial M ESEEK CEREME
statements of entities outside the PRC. The reserve HEERER - FERBEHIIRN
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy MEFIVZE T RREE -
set out in note 1(v).
(d) Capital management (d EXER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AEBNEEREAR 2 BN IREARE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going BB ERESEELE S fE
concern so that it can provide returns for equity holders FFEAERREEE SRR AEMER
and benefits for other stakeholders and secure access to BERZALERERE  AHREL—
finance at a reasonable cost. BEEKARE -
The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital AEEREBN ERMESREERERE
structure to ensure it is in compliance with any loan DHERETEMEREHE - FXEED
covenants. The Group was in compliance with the financial R-B-—=F+=-A=+—HE0
covenants as at 31 December 2013. The Group also M o REBNLIEREE B R
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio which is (ASRITR EME PR AR TTE)
calculated by dividing bank and other loans by total equity. EBBIRER ZEAE o

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&sETEH R
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RSAERBI UARBTREN)

28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 28 LR AEREE 2R S

TRANSACTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose ANTRMN—TBERESTE EREAE
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who EXXEEMEERATELSBRE
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The basis E-EREREZIMNEERALZEE
of eligibility of any of the eligible persons to the grant of options REE  ZHESSTIRRBREHARE
shall be determined by the Board of directors from time to time BzREREEEY 2B RS E T S E
on the basis of their contribution or potential contribution to MEE - REREFAZ ((EREFAE ) R==
the development and growth of the Group. The original share E_FRA=+T—HEZ+FHEER -
option scheme (the “Original Scheme”) was effective during RZE—CZFEXAZ+ZH  XATZKR
the period of 10 years from 31 May 2002. On 22 June 2012, RESRM—IEI RS ([3E 3]
the shareholders of the Company approved to adopt a new REIEEEE - TERBRFTETHEL
share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) and to terminate the IEATIR 2 IR A - RIBIRET Bl 2 ARFRAD
Original Scheme. All options granted under the Original Scheme WBEBHWR AT o BRIEWMESHIERT -
prior to its termination will continue to be valid and exercisable Hitg AR —E——FAZt+ZHEZ
in accordance with the terms of the Original Scheme. The New TFEREZTER -

Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from 22 June 2012
unless otherwise cancelled or amended.

The terms of the New Scheme and the Original Scheme are et B RET B 2R AR BAER o IREF
similar. Under the terms of the New Scheme and any other FFEIRARQ B 2 M H AL RS 8 215
share option schemes of the Company, the maximum number HoRTHAERHATEERESZSH
of unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted B DREBRETEREESERRQIRE
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the B EITEBRZ10%  RIBEHTE
ordinary shares of the Company in issue at any time. The ERAB 2R A EHMERESTZE > R+ =
maximum number of shares issuable under the New Scheme BHRERAITETTFEUNEERALZESR
and any other share option schemes of the Company to each THEE  DRAQAEMEEERTES
eligible participant within a 12-month period is limited to 1% of Bz1% - EBALREME-—SEEH
the ordinary shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any ZHERE BERENRBRERS E#E-
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to BREmEN  REFEIRAAT ZEME
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. Notwithstanding R IERTE . REMABTEZBRE
the foregoing, the ordinary shares which may be issued upon BEEITHEE BIT2EBRYETESE
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be BB BETEBRZ30% -

exercised under the New Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of
the ordinary shares in issue from time to time.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within EFATRBRERHB21RXRNIEMNER
21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal B WELXNEEREIOEBT FHER
consideration of HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise BZITFEHRBHESERE  BETERE
period of the share options granted is determinable by the HIEREERRB 2 TFFTEREAE (0
Board of directors, which is not later than ten years from the BHE) SAEHBREMESEE -

date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
schemes, if earlier. No vesting period is set for each grant of

options.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by the BREZTEERESIRE  HLRITE
Board of directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) RUTzESE  ((REBREER K
the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the NERPRBEEEBERSFTAERA T E
daily quotation sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong HeBREBUNR(ESREBNMNR]) 2WH
Kong Limited (the “Daily Quotation Sheets”) on the date of the B R BRABROREAENRA &
offer of the share options; and (ii) the average closing price of HEREEBRERASSZ B Z2F RS
the Company’s shares as stated in the Daily Quotation Sheets B Ri)RARZBRMOEE -

for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
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BE-Z-=F1+-A=+-HLEFE(RIBEHBIH UARBTHEN)
28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 2LUBRMDAERGEEZRS
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(%)

BREENRITEBREZTEERES
HEARERRT  BR  2FHIEHR
DRENRE R EITRHE -

Both the exercise price and the number of securities comprised
in each option outstanding are subject to adjustments in the
event of capitalisation issue, rights issue, sub-division or
consolidation of shares or reduction of capital.

ERE BECABRERHTETR
$ o

No options have been granted under the New Scheme to date.

(@ Rt=RA=1+—H B3 TzBR
EHEHEINT - mAABRED L

(@) The number of share options of the Original Scheme at
31 December are as follows, whereby all options are

settled by physical delivery of shares: ZERARH
2013 2012
ZE-Z=K “E--
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price share options price share options
1R BRELE 1FE BREHE
Options granted RlzHRE:
- on 10 November 2003 -RZEEZEr-ATH - -|  HK$0.1865E 610,800,660
- on 24 May 2005 -RZEERERAZTMA HK$0.10803% 7T 610,800,660 HK$0.10807 7T 610,800,660
Total number of share options EREHELE 610,800,660 1,221,601,320

The above options granted vested immediately from the
date of grant and with a contractual life of 10 years. Each
option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company. The options for the time being
outstanding may be exercised in whole or in part at any
time during the exercise period.

DEBRERRHERENRAESHEE
ZHFEMRTF - BRERELTEAEA
RBADR] - REBRZERN o BRIRIT
ErBREJETEHRZEMNKEEZE
HEBRATAE ©

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share

(b) REFEGHEITBREZHE R NEFS

options under the Original Scheme are as follows: TEENT :
2013 2012
-E-zf “B-CF

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of shares exercise price of shares
METaGEE R&| MEFHGRE e
QOutstanding at 31 December RTZR=t-Hz&8 HK$0.1088 610,800,660 HK$0.1475 7T 1,221,601,320

Equivalent to BER RMBA R #0.0857 RMBARE0.1197%

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&sETEH R
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BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RSAERBI UARBTREN)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management monitors the
exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing basis.

As set out in note 34(b), the Group had receivables due
from its immediate parent, C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment
Company Limited (“CPH”), and other subsidiaries and
associates of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited
(“CPG”), the ultimate holding company, amounting to
approximately RMB583 million (2012: RMB624 million) as
at 31 December 2013, which represents approximately
68% (2012: 74%) of the Group’s total trade and other
receivables. Given CPG is the Company’s ultimate holding
company, the directors consider that these amounts are
fully recoverable.

Except for the above, the Group has no other significant
concentration of credit risk on trade and other receivables.
Sales to retail customers are mainly made in cash or via
major credit cards. Cash and deposits are placed with
banks which the directors consider have sound credit
ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement
of financial position. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its
ability to maintain adequate cash inflow from operations
and obtain adequate finance from external parties or its
ultimate holding company to meet its debt obligations and
committed future capital expenditures as and when they
fall due.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB1,902 million (2012:
RMB3,030 million).
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20 TRIEREER A AEE)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

In preparing the financial statements, the directors have
considered the cash flow forecast of the Group for the
twelve months ending 31 December 2014. In preparing
the cash flow forecast, the directors have considered
historical cash requirements of the Group which may
impact the operations of the Group during the next twelve-
month period. The directors are of the opinion that the
assumptions which are included in the cash flow forecast
are reasonable. However, as with all assumptions in regard
to future events, these are subject to inherent limitations
and uncertainties and some or all of these assumptions
may not be realised.

Based on the cash flow forecast prepared, the directors
have determined that adequate liquidity exists to finance
the working capital and capital expenditure requirements
of the Group for the forthcoming year.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial

(b)

REBESERE (&)
EMF%EM%#E*H BBEERARE
BEE=E —mFE+ZA=+—H
-U:'i__ﬂzlﬁ Z‘I‘-ﬁ.%/)m;%ﬁ-’f—ﬁ EA,%F;E&
ﬁ%méﬁﬁ%’%%&%@$%§
ZEEREEFR (AREAREBRRK
TZEAHEEE) EERAHE
ERASREEBRZBRBESE - A
- PAEBEARRER ZRHRRK (RIE
RBEZRERAMNZE)  HFHE
HUHERRIATSER -

ﬁﬁETQZE%WEﬁﬁ'§$%
AEEBZRBESEUNENREZ
EEEESREREZER -

UTDHERadE s ZOMRK @?ETE

liabilities, including estimated interest payments and STRIENRRMBREEH E o FE
excluding the impact of netting agreements:
The Group &£
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
FRFERR SR
More than ~ More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
iyearor  lessthan  lessthan  More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
-Epg -4 W% )
2HH MER BRER LE# @ BEE
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETRE ARETn AR%TR ARETn ARETn ARET:R
31 December 2012 SE-ZEFCACY-
Non-derivative financial liabilities £ IRz ¢MEE
Bank loans BITER (1,273,129) - - - (1,273,123) 1,258,192
Other loans HinEH (160,800) - - - (160,800 152,100
Notes payable, creditors and EHRE BATE
accrued charges RERQAMER (3,600,767) - - - (3,600,767) 3,600,767
Amounts due to related companies BT L X508 (334,858) - - - (334858) 334858
Obligations under finance leases MENEER (24,858) (25,261) (77,274) (203,015) (330,408) 187,107
(5,394,406) (25,261) (77,274)  (203,015)  (5,699,956) 5,533,024
31 December 2013 - et - =
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3£ IRz ¢MEE
Bank loans RITER (111,195)  (158,435)  (1,043,761) - (1,313,391) 1,170,222
Other loans HnEH (41,537) - - - (41,537) 40,822
Notes payable, creditors and EREE - BAHA
accrued charges RENANER (3,666,173) - - - (3,666,173) 3,666,173
Amounts due to related companies  EfTIEBEXHE (436,602) - - - (436,602) 436,602
Obligations under finance leases ~ BEMEE (25,261) (25,620) (78,059)  (176,610)  (305,550) 180,430
(4,080,768)  (184,055)  (1,121,820)  (176,610) (5,763,253) 5,494,249
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20 TRIEREER A AEE)

BE-S-=F+-A=t-ALFE(RSARBN UARBTRERD)
29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RBELRAMR (&)
The Company & 2 7]
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ANFERREML
More than ~ More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but
1 year or less than less than ~ More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
- ME#
BEH mER  BRFR nEH ag BEE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETT ARETr AR%TR ARETR AREFr ARET:R
31 December 2012 “E-ZETZAZT-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ¥fi4TE2¢RAE
Bank loans BITER (179,187) - - - (179,187) 177,086
Other loans & (16,157) - - - (16,157) 15,740
Creditors and accrued charges EARERENRIER (1,197) - - - (1,197) 1,197
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHEL 58 (402,248) - - - (402248) 402,248
(598,789) - - - (598,789) 596,271
31 December 2013 “E-ZETZA=T-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ##T£IEvEREE
Bank loans BITER (15,975) (22,424)  (147,339) - (185738) 164,843
Other loans EtEH (15,626) - - - (15,626) 15,263
Creditors and accrued charges ERFEREARTER (1,258) - - - (1,258) 1,258
Amounts due to subsidiaries EAKBARZE (421,461) - - - (d21461) 421461
(454,320) (22,424) (147339 - (624,083 602,825
(c) Interest rate risk (c) RE@E
(i) Interest rate profile () FIEHRE

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, bank loans, other
loans, and obligations under finance leases.

The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s and the Company’s net borrowings
(interest-bearing liabilities less interest-bearing
financial investments excluding cash held for short-
term working capital purposes) at the end of the
reporting period.
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Interest rate risk (Continued)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

Interest rate profile (Continued)

The Group &%

(c) RI=mbx (&)

() FIEER (&)

2013 2012
—E-z=F —E--F

Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
interest rate value | interest rate value
BHAE EEE BRA=E FHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T

Variable rate instruments: FHAXIA:
Pledged bank deposits BERAZRITER 2.12% 104,461 1.58% 214,831
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEE 0.35% 245,228 0.75% 397,227
Bank loans RITER 3.50% (1,170,222) 3.56% (1,258,192)
Other loans HihE® 1.75% (40,822) 1.81% (42,100)
(861,355) (688,234)

Fixed rate instruments: EEfEIA:
Other loans HttE R - 7.22% (110,000
Obligations under finance leases FMERES T 9.8%~10.03% (180,430) [9.8%~10.03% (187,107)
(180,430) (297,107)

The Company &2 7
2013 2012
—E-=§ —E-CZ&

Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
interest rate value interest rate value
BRAE BHE BRAE FEE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETR AR¥TR

Variable rate instruments: FHAERIA:
Cash and cash equivalents BeRELEHE 0.02% 14,667 0.02% 30,507
Bank loans BITER 3.50% (164,843) 3.56% (177,086)
Other loans HtER 2.58% (14,105) 2.86% (14,546)
(164,281) (161,125)
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 20 SRIAKREER AAME(E)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) A=mEbx (&)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BT HT
At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that a change R-ZE—=F5+=A8 E-I:— A
of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other I B R Z100EERKZ E (H
variables held constant, would increase/(decrease) fuff A % EEERFTE) S8
the Group’s net loss and accumulated loss by the m/ OB AEBzEIERE
amounts shown below: REFABEEBELT :
2013 2012
—B-Z=ZfF —E-CZF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARBT T
Variable rate instrument: FEFEIA:
100 basis point increase 38 H11001E & 24 8,614 6,882
100 basis point decrease EA1001E E B (8,614) (6,882)
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined Bl E 2 SR E 5 AT R ER TR A R
assuming that the change in interest rates had LHEERNRERCEEZER
occurred at the reporting date and had been applied TEERANZERK -oHE_-F
to the exposure to interest rate risk for financial ——FEHEHEE -
instruments in existence at that date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2012.
(d) Currency risk (d) SMERB
The directors consider that as the Group’s retail operations EERBEEECETEXB D HBURA
are all based in the PRC, the Group is not exposed to R AREERESEERPESFT K
significant currency risk in its retail operations. HNEE [ B o
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk from AEBZHERMEEREE THE
bank loans held by certain PRC subsidiaries, which MEARIUETAEEEN ZRITE
are denominated in USD. At 31 December 2013, the MoRZEBE—=HF+ZH=+—H >
relevant bank loans amounted to USD164,900,000 (2012: 16 B8 2 $R 17 & X 164,900,000 T
USD172,000,000). A 5% strengthening/weakening of RMB (Z&— =% :172,000,000% jT) °
against the USD would result in a decrease/increase in the RZEBE—=F+ZA=+—H 5%
Group’s net loss and an increase/decrease in net assets of ARBHET 2 HBE B 5HHER
approximately RMB50.3 million as at 31 December 2013 EBECEEFERY ENMREE
(2012: RMB54.1 million) had such change occurred at that SRR, R 4 AR #50,300,000
date, assuming all other risk variables remained constant. T(ZE-ZF: AE@%S{,‘I 00,000
) RBEREHBRERKMER
bR AT SRR TE -
RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the PRC AR EHELEERPEBA
government may at its discretion restrict access to RARFZEBRFBEHS RS U
foreign currencies for current account transactions in the BT c IMBSERZEFRR 2 NER
future. Changes in the foreign exchange control system g AEERE EAMNEERRAE
may prevent the Group from satisfying sufficient foreign B oREMERRUIIMIRER S -

currency demand and the Group may not be able to pay
dividends in foreign currencies to its shareholders.
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement

The Group did not hold any financial assets and liabilities
carried at fair value as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

The carrying amount of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial assets and liabilities carried at cost or amortised
cost are not materially different from their fair value as at
31 December 2013 and 2012.

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

31

As at the reporting date, the Company has issued two
guarantees to an independent third party which expire in 2025
and two guarantees to a bank which expire in April 2014 and
July 2014 respectively in respect of finance lease arrangements
entered into by its subsidiaries (see note 23). As at the end of
reporting period, the directors do not consider it probable that
claims will be made against the Company under any of the
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at the end
of the reporting period under the guarantees issued is 100%
of the future minimum lease payments under the two lease
agreements entered into by the subsidiaries of RMB100 million.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessee

At 31 December 2013, total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

29

@
o

31

ctHEREERAAE (&)

(e) RAEBEZFE
RZBE-—ZFR_FT—-——F+=-H
=t+—B - AEELEFEEMAIED
ZEJNRzERHEEREE -
R_B-—=FR-_ZF—-——F+=H
=t+—0 REERKRQATZEHME
ERAGERRAS SR RANRZER
HEEEAABTEEREE -

g
i
o

RBER ADAIRBILE=F#HWE
BR-ZEZHFNHZER THEE X
BIREMES IR -_E-—NEFNAR=
Z-NELAZBHZER EBEENER
AzRMEREZEE (BRM23) - RiksE
R B2 FRAAEULEMERS TR
BAATERE - NAFARBEHZERTR
BEMRCBEREETHB LRSI MIE
HERBEZARBRLPBHEEMNRZ100%5
A E#100,000,0007T °

EEHE AL
BEHEA
RZE—=F+ZA=+—H  FTAHEUH

EEBEHECARGRERBEERIELALE
mE

The Group The Company
xEH bV

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —BE-—F | ZB—= B
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR| AR TR
Within 1 year —FR 539,289 510,741 - -
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERLFRH 416,101 364,951 - -
After 5 years hE® 35,206 26,527 - -
990,596 902,219 - -

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of office
and store premises held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period up to 20 years, with an option
to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease
payments are usually increased every 1 to 7 years to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
The store leases typically provide the Group with the ability
to cancel the leases within the lease period on payment of a
penalty and/or after a minimum period of leasing.

AEBEDETHLAERIERMYE2EER
EFRAAN - HE-RZOVBEBAIEE—1
FOURNBEZMAERAEEREESR
H-HENRBEEE-—ELFEMURKR
mIBEBAMR - WEHEREREIAE
B -ERHEEREEEASEREEHALUL
XNERR/ IREEEEHETEOEE
E o
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31 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS EEHRE ZAE (&)
(Continued)
As lessor RHEBA
Property rental income earned net of negligible outgoings RER KREBZHSYWERS KA
from subletting of the Group’s leased properties during the A 9 A Faﬁ i BH B ARK
year amounted to approximately RMB405,089,000 (2012: 405 (;89 0005% (= —F AR

RMB369,396,000).

At 31 December 2013, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as
follows:

369,396,0007T) °

R-B—=F+-A=+—8  FTTH
2 EBAE YRR AR KR @B
T

The Group
rEE

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E-=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBT T
Within 1 year —FR 188,637 169,504
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREREFR 100,347 86,594
After 5 years LE#%E 28,718 7,316
317,702 263,414

The leases typically run for an initial period of 3 months
to 2 years, with an option to renew the lease when all
terms are renegotiated. In addition to the minimum rental
payments disclosed above, the tenants have commitments
to pay additional rent of a proportion of turnover for certain
sub-leased properties if the turnover generated from those
sub-leased properties exceeds the predetermined levels.
Contingent rentals are not included in the above commitments
as it is not possible to estimate the amounts which may be
payable.

32 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2013 not

HE— &zmﬁﬂﬁ BRAZEME » K
BEEMEKAREEREE Egﬁoﬁtﬂ
BB REEESS DHEMEES
HEA & %ﬁELEEZK$ﬁ’ﬁ?
R EEE o E TEHMBFEN
& o AR KREETMAARBABNESE UL
ZEELTAGESABS -

32 EAREE

REZZB—=F+ZA=1t—8 ' RBHER

provided for in the financial statements were as follows: LN ARBESENEENT
The Group
rEHE
2013 2012
—E—= —E—-F
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBT T
Contracted for EHES 12,462 13,375
Authorised but not contracted for EHEEBRETHN 258,000 462,944
270,462 476,319

All of the above capital commitments were made in respect of
the establishment of new hypermarket stores and renovation
work on existing stores.

Annual Report 2013 %3k
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33 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
a Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPF scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee.
Under the rules of the MPF scheme, each of the Group and the
employee make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ gross earnings, subject to a maximum of
HK$1,250 per month per employee. The only obligation of the

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3 5 B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-=ZF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)
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Group with respect to the MPF scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

Employees of the Group in the PRC participate in several
defined contribution retirement schemes organised separately
by PRC municipal governments in regions where the major
operations of the Group are located. The Group is required
to contribute to these schemes at rates ranging from 11%
to 22% (2012: 11% to 22%) of salary costs including certain
allowances. A member of the retirement schemes is entitled
to retirement benefits equal to a fixed proportion of the salary
at the retirement date. The retirement benefit obligations of all
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B S o

o IR0 | |

\
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\
/

existing and future retired staff of the Group are assumed by
these schemes.

34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(a)

The Group entered into the following material transactions
with entities controlled by, or related to, the ultimate

holding company, CPG during the year.
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The Group
TEE
2013 2012
—EBE-=F —E-—F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR TR ARBT R
Continuing related party transactions: BEMABALZRS
Store merchandise sold to CPH and HE/EHEmTCPHR HAEE
its related entities (note (i)) E ([!ﬁa‘f()) 702,090 670,217
Store merchandise purchased from £ B /5 %7 fm B Orient Success
Orient Success International Limited International Limited ([OSIL]) &
(“OSIL”) and its related entities HiE % (B#ECP China
(including CP China Investment Limited Investment Limited
and its subsidiaries) (note (i)) REMBAR) (KEi) 123,398 278,252
Rental income from Chia Tai Commercial HEWABLABERHEERE
Real Estate Management Co., Ltd. ERAR(TEAERED R
(“CTCREM”) and its subsidiary (note (i) HM B2 = (ME() 18,372 18,060
Rental expenses to Shanghai Kinghill Limited HEXHIF EEFHER
(“SKL”) (note (i) BRAA ([ LEFE] (KEI)) 18,000 18,000
Consulting fee paid to CTCREM (note (i) BEEEAXTFIEXEE () - 4,890
Master trademark fee paid to CPG (note (i)  EEHEE A+ FCPG (Ff&E(i) 834 838
Other related party transactions (note (iii)): Ht#HEBE A+ 2% 5 (K(ii))
Reimbursement of staff costs (note (iv)) EERARE (ME(v) 25,935 47,874
Allocation of administration expenses at cost 1T E UK A B FCPHR E
to CPH and its related entities (note (iv)) HEdE (HFEE(v)) 9,529 -
Bank facility undertaking fee payable to CPG ~ E{JiR{TRE & E R FCPG - 2,113
Proceeds from loans ER A 95,000 420,000
Repayment of loans EZEX 65,000 385,000
Other loans assigned to CPH and Hitb & HEZETCPHR
its related entities (note (v)) HIABA®Z (K (V) 140,000 -
Interest expenses in respect of other loans HEEMERER 2R EXE - 9,194
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34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

These related party transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

This related party transaction constitutes a continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, however it is exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

These related party transactions constitute connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
however they are exempt from the disclosure requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The employment contracts of certain individuals who
previously worked for the Group but now work for CPH
and its related entities on a full-time basis remained with
the Group. The employment costs of such individuals were
reimbursed by CPH and its related entities to the Group.
Total staff costs disclosed in note 4(b) are stated net of such
reimbursement.

Further, following the organisation restructuring in 2013, the
Group shares certain administrative services with CPH and
its related entities. The Group charges the costs applicable
to CPH and its related entities on a cost basis.

During 2013, the Group entered into agreements with CPH
and its related entities to assign certain loans from related
parties and other parties amounting to RMB140 million to
CPH and its related entities. Upon the transfer to CPH and its
related entities, the amounts became non-interest bearing.
Prior to the transfer, the loans from related parties were
unsecured and bear interest at 7.393% per annum; the loans
from other parties were unsecured and bear interest rate at
5.90% per annum.
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34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

In addition to the other loans due to related companies as
disclosed in note 22, the Group had the following balances

M4 EAHBALZRE (&)

(b) BREE(THEBERZE 2 K &R RN MIFE22

RES - AEBEABEE ZA&RN

with related companies: T
The Group The Company
r~EE NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
ZE-Zf | ZB-ZF | ZB-Z=ZF | ZE-Z=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARETR | ARBTR | AR TR | AR%BTR
Due from related companies EWHBE % FIE
- CPH and its related entities ~ —CPHR HiAB % 570,731 617,508 4,458 -
- OSIL and its related entities ~ —OSILK EiAB % 2,362 2,422 - -
- CTCREM and its subsidiary —EABFERE
G =RNE 10,330 4,217 - -
- Other related companies -HiEEtE 16 8 13 5
583,439 624,155 4,471 5
Due to related companies A EEEERE
- CPG —CPG 822 835 - -
- CPH and its related entities =~ —CPHR HiAB % 390,528 255,478 - -
- OSIL and its related entities ~ —OSILK EiABI % 25,952 31,459 - -
- SKL -Lb8%H 14,119 33,484 - -
- Chia Tai Land Company —-EREHERDLF
Limited 4,660 10,616 - -
— Other related companies —-HipraRa % 521 2,986 - -
436,602 334,858 - -

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration of key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as

(c) FEEEAEHE

AEBTEERASZHME  BFEMH
HWB XN TFARAEEZEH

disclosed in note 6, is as follows: T
The Group
AEH

2013 2012
—E—-= —E—-—-F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T AR TR
Short-term employee benefits ZHiEERA 30,534 29,678
Post-employment benefits TREBEER 36 42
Termination benefits EHRIEHEE - -
Equity compensation benefits EERERA - -
30,570 29,720

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note
4(b)).

HWEeRBEEREERA (R

4(b)) A ©
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35 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING BbEERRAERAA
COMPANIES
At 31 December 2013, the directors consider the immediate R-ZB—=F+=-HF=+—H EER
holding company to be C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company BARNBRCEEERADARKE#
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and BRAEEFTMA L 2C.P. Holding (BVI)
ultimate holding company to be Charoen Pokphand Group Investment Company Limited @ R & &
Company Limited, which is incorporated in the Kingdom of 3% A A B W %= Bl FE B 3Z ZCharoen
Thailand. None of these entities produces financial statements Pokphand Group Company Limited ° 1t
available for public use. ERAMERLARATIMER 2 T KR

& o
36 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 36 2 at{h 5t & H K

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The selection of critical accounting
policies, the judgements and other uncertainties affecting
application of those policies and the sensitivity of reported
results to changes in conditions and assumptions are factors
to be considered when reviewing the consolidated financial
statements. Notes 13 and 29 contain information about
the assumptions and their risk factors relating to goodwill
impairment and financial instruments. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Going concern

The directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group in light
of the Group’s net current liabilities of approximately
RMB1,902 million. The directors consider that it is
appropriate to prepare the financial statements using a
going concern basis. Further details are set out in note
1(b). Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, all of the Group’s assets and liabilities would
have to be stated at net realisable value. In particular,
the non-current assets and the non-current liabilities
would have to be reclassified as current assets and
current liabilities respectively and provision for contingent
liabilities may be required as a result.
(b) Depreciation of fixed assets
Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking into account the
estimated residual value. The Group reviews annually
the estimated useful lives of the assets and their residual
values, if any. The useful lives are based on the Group’s
historical experience with similar assets. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.
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36 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
interests in subsidiaries, fixed assets, goodwill and
other non-current assets may not be recoverable, these
assets may be considered “impaired”, and an impairment
loss may be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36,
“Impairment of assets”. The carrying amounts of these
assets are reviewed periodically in order to assess whether
the recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying
amounts. These assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable, except
for goodwill which is tested annually for impairment.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is
reduced to the recoverable amount. Determining whether
goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The recoverable amount is the greater of
the net selling price and the value in use. It is difficult to
precisely estimate selling prices because quoted market
prices for the Group’s assets are not readily available.
In determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement relating to
revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of revenue and amount of
operating costs.

Deferred tax

At 31 December 2013, the Group has recognised a
deferred tax asset in relation to tax losses carried forward
of certain PRC subsidiaries, as set out in note 25. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the asset can be utilised. In
assessing the need to recognise a deferred tax asset,
management considers all available evidence, including
projected future taxable income, tax planning strategies,
historical taxable income, and the expiration period of the
losses carried forward. In cases where the actual future
taxable profits are less than expected, a reversal of a
deferred tax asset may arise, which will be recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which such a reversal takes
place.

36 &5t fl &t & M B (&)
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37 COMPARATIVE FIGURES 37 LLBEHF
Interest on issuance of bank accepted bills amounting to RITBRE AL EZNESEAARY
RMB4,427,000, which was recorded in administrative expenses 4,427,000T  RZE——F K HES
in the 2012 financial statements are now presented as finance BRITHER - Iﬁzﬂi‘%mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ-‘ LB
costs to reflect more appropriately the nature of the expenses. EMRMREZTHAIMEE -

38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 3B EHMMEETRARBE

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2013 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements.

—E—=FtT-A=fT—-AL
FEEMZEE ~ MEAR
REZARYE

EETBADBREZBHH/L  FBS
SRR AEE RS ISR R ER - K
AREBE_Z-—=F+_A=+t—HILLF
BE A R R I RS B S 3R 5 O ERAN ©

Effective for accounting period beginning on or after

RETHEARALEN
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27, ERMBRERAEI0%  BENBRIEE 125 1 January 2014 “E-mE-5-H
Investment entities REBEHENES 2 BN KEER
Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments; Presentation &8 & 5T B 530% (B3] K) » 2B T & 1 January 2014 “E-mE-F-A
- Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities BH-HHeBEERZHEE
Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount BAGHENS0E (BITA) #2HEE2 1 January 2014 “E-PE-A-A
disclosures for non-financial assets TREHERE
Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives BRGHERNESE (BIA) FEIAZEERY EFEZEE 1 January 2014 “2-ME-A-A
and continuation of hedge accounting
HK(IFRIC) 21, Levies BEERNERERARZEC)RRENG HF 1 January 2014 “E-MmE-F-H
Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits: BREHENS195 (BITA) E1H7 1July 2014 ZE-mELA-R
Defined benefit plans: Employee contribution REEHTE EIHEH
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle CE-FEECE-CERBUEREEABN FENE 1July 2014 “E-MELA-A
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle CE--FEIE-CERANEREENBN EENE 1 July 2014 “E-mELE-R
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (2009) BANLREENE 2HIA(CEELE) Unspecified ARR
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (2010) EANBREEAE 2HTA(C5-FF) Unspecified *ER
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Financial instruments and BEEMKREENESE (BK)  2HTAR Unspecified ARR
HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures ERURRLENETS 2HIA HE
- Mandatory effective date and transition disclosures —BHENAFREEMRE
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments: Hedge accounting and BEUBRERRRS  2HIA  HRBH LREEIEHLENZIF - Unspecified ARR

amendments HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39 (2013) BRI R E BB RS0 (Z -2 F) 264K

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

AE B EFE R L E T R E RN EIRE
REB 8 25 2EmIIRMZEE
AT EHAEBEEBEERVBMRR
BEEBEREE-
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A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the

Summary of Financial Information

MBEREE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
(AAR®THREN)

FEEBEABAMRFEZXE BEERAE

last five financial years is as follows: WMEWT :
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
“EThE “E-EZF§ —E2——-F —E--F§ —E-=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARETR ARETT ARET ARETT AR®TR
RESULTS 4
Turnover =+ 8,783,361 9,374,500 10,019,305 10,677,425 10,881,553
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREiA (B8) &7 (214,571) 340,656 34,686 (324,494) (21,121)
Taxation BIE (21,161) 8,666 (10,926) (67,145) (75,801)
(Loss)/profit for the year EE(FR) /&7 (235,732) 349,322 23,760 (391,639) (96,922)
Attributable to: R AT :
Equity shareholders AARRRE
of the Company (235,732) 349,322 23,813 (391,530) (96,837)
Non-controlling interests FERER - - (53) (109) (85)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BR) &7 (235,732) 349,322 23,760 (391,639) (96,922)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Total assets BEE 7,009,128 6,649,927 6,909,213 7,717,340 7,631,416
Total liabilities "R (6,874,267) (5,372,729) (4,906,728) (5,644,600) (5,561,900)
NET ASSETS EEFHE 134,861 1,277,198 2,002,485 2,072,740 2,069,516
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR G
Total equity attributable to ANRRRENL
equity shareholders R
of the Company 134,861 1,275,198 2,000,538 2,070,902 2,067,763
Non-controlling interests FERER - 2,000 1,947 1,838 1,753
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 134,861 1,277,198 2,002,485 2,072,740 2,069,516
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Financial Calendar and Shareholder Information

BBRERRRRESR

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2014

Annual Results announced

—E-IERBER

24 February 2014

EAIZFEEEE —E-mFEZA=Z+MA
Annual General Meeting April 2014
BREFRKE —E-NEMA
2014 Interim Results August 2014
—E-NERHEE —E-—WENAR
Financial year end 31 December
B EEKER +=ZB=+—H
SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION &R &%
Share Capital & 4 Nominal value

H{E Number of
As at 31 December 2013 HK$ shares HK$’ 000
R-E—=%F+=-H=+-—H BT & FHBxT
Ordinary Shares & & %
Authorised =& 0.02 34,000,000,000 680,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up B #{T R # 2 0.02 10,408,271,730 208,165
Series A Convertible Preference Shares AZ %I Al iR 8 5 IR
Authorised £ & 0.02 2,000,000,000 40,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* B 31T R & 2" 0.02 1,518,807,075 30,376
Series B Convertible Preference Shares BZ 3 A # KR8 TR
Authorised 3£ & 0.02 4,000,000,000 80,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* B #1T R4 2" 0.02 3,897,110,334 77,942
Series C Convertible Preference Shares CZ %l [ IR & 5t %
Authorised £ & 0.02 4,500,000,000 90,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* B 21Tk #2** 0.02 3,671,509,764 73,430
Series D Convertible Preference Shares DX 5| o[ IR 8 % B%
Authorised 3£ & 0.02 2,500,000,000 50,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* B 1T R 2* 0.02 2,211,382,609 44,228

* Held by C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited

*k

Held by C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited & Public

Shareholding R &

* HC.P. HoId|ng (BVI) Investment Company
Limited## 5
HC.P. HoIding %BVI) Investment Company
Limited & A R #F
% of issued
share capital

As at 31 December 2013 Number of shares BEITRA
R=ZE—=f+=B=+—8 i & ZEDH
C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited* 6,788,319,021 65.22%
Public & Others A3 & H 3,619,952,709 34.78%
TOTAL # % 10,408,271,730 100%

i C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited is an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited

Stock Code M 171X 5%

# C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company
LimitedJ5Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limitedz —REZE2 EM B D 7

Hong Kong Stock Exchange BB
Reuters Reuters
Bloomberg Bloomberg

Request for Feedback

Please email to contact@cplotuscorp.com for any comments on our
public announcements and disclosures.
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